





DIVIDEND
In view of the planned business growth, your Directors deem it proper to preserve the resources of the

Company for its activities and therefore, do not propose any dividend for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2019.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE
‘The Directors does not propose to transfer any amount to reserve during the year.

JINDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Ind-AS)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notifications in the Official Gazette dated February 16,
2013, notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) applicable to certain classes of companies. Ind
-AS has replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule7of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.Accordingly, financial statements of the Company
and consolidated financial statements were prepared for the financial year ended 31% March,2019 with
comparative data for the year ended March 31,2019, in compliance with ‘Ind-AS’.

OPERATIONS AND STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under:-
e Revenue from operations has increased to 39.13 % from Rs.10.63 cr to Rs.14.79 cr
e Profit for the year has increased by 85.93 % from Rs.2.63 cr to Rs.4.89 cr
e Earnings per share have increased by 89.50 % to from Rs 8.86 to Rs. 16.79

Development of Township at Kamnara (Burdwan)

The Company has entered into a Public Private Partnership with Burdwan Development Autherity to develop
township at Kamnara, Burdwan in the state of West Bengal and is in the process of getting the lease registered
in its name from Burdwan Development Authority. Thereafter, the work of the project shall commence in full
swing generating substantial revenue in the company.

Alisha Bus stand at Burdwan in the State of West Bengal.

During the current year your Company has obtained license from Hindustan Petrol Corporation Ltd to set up
and operate petrol pump at the above Site and your Directors are hopeful to commence the commercial
operation of the Petrol pump very soon generating revenue in the company. Furthermore, discussion is on
advance stage with various MINC’s and other interested parties to outlet vacant area for commercial purpose in
the said site to generate revenue in the company.

Textile Division of the Company

The shareholders should appreciate the fact that your Company has now started giving on rent spaces for god
own to various parties in the Textile Division which did not earn any reverue for so many years.



Negotiation with Calcutta Port trust for renewal of lease agreement

There has been substantial headway in resolving the long pending issue with Kolkata Port Trust regarding
renewal of lease agreement .

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or an Associate Company

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management discussion and analysis report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation
34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached ‘with this report and marked as Annexure -1.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of Annual Return in form no.MGT-9 as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act,

2013 for the financial year ending March 31,2019 is annexed hereto as Annexure II and forms part of
this repott.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERTAL PERSONNEL (KMP)
Mr, Ashok Kumare Saraf ( Din: 01621120), Non Executive Director , retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. An Appropriate resolution

for his appointment is being placed for consideration of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Mr. Pradip Ghosh ( Din :01958837) was appointed as Independent Director of the company to hold the
office for a period of 5 years and that she shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are

Shri Jugal Kishore Agrawal , Whole Time Director , Shri Ajit Kumar Jain , Company Secretary and Smt-
Somika Jain , CFO. Remuneration and other details of the Key Managerial Personnel for the year ended
31st March, 2019 are mentioned in the Extract of the Annual Return which is attached in the Report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD.

The Board delegate different aspects of business to designated Committees of the Board. The Company has
constituted various committees as per LODR vizz Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Cormrnittee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk management Committee

DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149(7) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Director that they meet the criteria of
Independence as prescribed under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.



FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Nomination and Reémuneration Committee of the Board has devised criteria for evaluation of the
performance of Direciors. The Board has evaluated its own performance and that of its Committees and
all Individual Directors i.e. both Independent and Non - Independent. All the Directors of the Company
are found to be persons of having knowledge and experience in their respective area and their association
with the company is beneficial to the Company.

COMPANY'’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy in consultation with its
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of directors and criteria for directot’s appointments and remuneration.

The main features of the Policy are as follows:

»  The Company while constituting the Board shall draw members from diverse fields such as
finance, law, administration, management, marketing, manufacturing, operations or other
disciplines related to the Company’s business. There shall be no discrimination on the basis of
gender, while determining the Board composition.

e A Director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience. He/She
shall upload ethical standards of integrity and probity and act objectively and constructively.
He/She shall exercise his/her responsibilities in obligations for informed and balanced decision
making. Assist the Company in implementing the best corporate gevernance practices.

e The objective of the policy is to have a compensation framework that will reward and retain talent.

¢ The remuneration will be such as to ensure that the correlation of remuneration to performance is
clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company had (8) Board meetings during the financial year 2018-2019

Date of Board meeting No. of Directors attended the meeting
05/06/2018 3
11/06/2018 3
11/08/2018 3
05/09/2018 3
30/11/2018 4




30/01/2019 3

15/02/2019 3

15/03/2019 3

Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requiremerits) Regulations, 2015, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company was also held on 30/11/2018 without the presence of non-independent directors and members of
the management, to review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole, the
performance of the Chairperson of the Company and also to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of
flow of information between the Company management and the Board.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company
corifirms that- ,

(d)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended i March, 2019, the Company has
followed the applicable accounting standards and there are no material departures from the same.

(b) the Directors have selected such aceounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at *'* March, 2019 and of the profit and loss of the Comipany for that
period;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d). the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern' basis;

(¢)  the Company being unlisted, sub clause (€) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, /2013 pertaining
- to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company;
(§ the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS’ REPORTS:
The Independenit Auditors’ Reports for the financial year ended 31% March,2019 does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules,2014, the Company had appointed Madan Mohan

Kothaii ., Practising Company Secretaries, as Secretarial auditor for conducting the Secretarial Audit of the

Company for the financial year 2018-19, The Secretarial Auditors’ Reports received from the said
5




Auditors, forms part of this report and marked as Annexare-ITL. There are no qualifications or adverse
remarks in their report.

COST AUDIT:
Pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost
records and audit) Rules, 2014, Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company.

_PARTICUL_ARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
Particulars of Loans given by the, and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financijal year ended 3 1st March, 2019 were
on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted. Hence, disclosure in form no. AQC-2 is not required.

Also, there are no materially significant related party transactions during the year under review made by the
Company with Promoters, Directors, or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large. However, the disclosure of transactions with related party for the
year, as per Accounting Standard-18 Related Party Disclosures is given in Notes to the Balance Sheet as
on 31st March, 2019.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TOS ECTION 134(3) (m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ
WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES ( ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

(A).conservation of energy, technelogy absorption and foreign exchange earnings & outgo:

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of consetvation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the
nature of activities undertaken by the cempany during the year under review.

(B).Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Earnings Rs. Nil
Outgo Rs. Nil

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board has developed and implemented a risk management policy of the Company identifying therein
the elements of risk and concern that may threaten the existence of the Company which entail the recording
_monitoring and controlling of the Company’s risks and addressing them comprehensively and empirically.

The Risk Management system aims to: ' _ )
i. Address our Company’s strategies, operations and compliances and provide a unified and comprehensive:
perpective;



ti. Establish the risk appetite;

iii. Be simplistic and intuitive to facilitate a speedy and appropriate identification of potential and actual
risks and its communication;

iv. Seek escalation of the identified risk events to the appropriate persons to enable a timely and
satisfactory risk response: ”

v. Reduce surprises and losses, forsee opportunities and improve deployment of resources; and

vi. Develop a mechanism to manage risks.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY :

Provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to our Company, Hence,
disclosure as per Annexure given in the Companies ( Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
has not been made here.

LISTING OF SHARES AND LISTING FEE:
The equity shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd...The listing fee for the
year 2018-19 has already been paid to the Stock Exchange.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT :

The provisions of Regulation 15(2) read with Regulation 27 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company.
Hence, report on Corporate Governance for the financial year 2018-19 is not attached herewith.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review,

AUDIT,C‘OMMITTEE:
The present composition of the Audit Committee of the Company is as under:
SL.No. Name of the Category of the Designation
Director Director
i P S Ghosh Independent Chairman
Director
i. Trakad Shivarama Krishnan Independent Member
Uma Director
iii, Arun Kumar Poddar Director Member

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee. There is no such recommendation of the Audit
Committee which has not been aceepted by the Board, during the year under review.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy. The policy allows intimation by
any director or employee or any other stakeholder to the designated officer in good faith of misconduct or
unethical or improper activity through a written communication. Audit Committee oversees the vigil
mechanism for disposal of the. complaint. Direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee is also
allowed in exceptional cases. The vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy is available on Company’s
website .

The Company has adopted guidelines for ensuring orderly and efficient Internal Financial Controls as
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required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee after considering the
views of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors has found that such Internal Financial Controls,
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company, are adequate and operating efficiently. The
Audit Committee, in consultation with the Internal Auditors, formulates the scope, functien and
methodology for conducting the internal audit. The Internal Financial Controls system is satisfactory as per
evaluation of the Audit Committee.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of employees pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the:
Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) Rules , 2014 are not applicable to
the Comipany. Hence, report on Particulars of Employees for the financial year 2018-19 is not attached
herewith.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has adopted guidelines for ensuring orderly and efficient Internal Financial Controls as
required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Audit Committee after considering the
views of Statutory Auditors have found that such Internal Financial Controls, commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company, are adequate and operating efficiently. The Internal Financial Controls
system. is satisfactory as per evaluation of the Audit Committee.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI ( Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation
2015, the CEO and CFO certificate for the financial year 2018-2019 has been submitted to the board and
a copy thereof is contained in the annual report and marked as Annexure-IV.

DISCLOSURES :

Following disclosures are made under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

i.There is no change in the nature of business.

ii. There is no significant and material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going eoncern status and the Company’s operations in future.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013,

The following is a summary of complaints of sexual harassment of women at workplace received and
disposed of during the year 2018-19:

No. of complaints received: Nil. No. of complaints disposed off : Nil.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation
teceived from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and
members during the year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of
appreciation for the committed services by the Company's executives, staff and workers.
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ANNEXURE IV. CEQ/CFO Certificate Under Regulation 17(8) Of SEBI (Listing Obligations And

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 .

We hereby certify to the board that :-

a.

i.

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2018-19
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief :-

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to. the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the financial year 2018-19 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code
of conduct.

we accept the responsibility of establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and we
have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to
rectify these deficiencies.

'we have indicated to the auditors and the audit committee

i, There have not been significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during
the said financial year;
ii. There have not been significant changes in accounting policies during the said financial year

and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements ; and

i There has not been instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in
the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Kolkata
Date: 29/07/2019 sd- Sonika Jain sd-Jugal Kishore Agrawal
CFO WTD
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Annexure ~II to the Boards Report
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31% March, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and wile 12(1) of the

Conipanies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

iy CIN -L51909WB1963PLC025750

iiy  Registration Date: 05/02/1963

iify Name of the Company: Poddar Projects Lid.

iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non-Government Company
v)  Address of the Registered office and contact details:

Poddar Court, 18, Rabindra Sarani,
9™ Floor, Kolkata- 700001,
Phone: (033) 2225 0352/4147, 4022 6000/2445 8901

Fax: (033).2225 0348, E-Mail I1d: Poddatprojects.roci@gmail.com, www.Poddar Projects.com

vi) Whether listed company: YES
VII) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent: IN~-HOUSE. FACILITY

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SL No. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/ service| % to total
turnover of the

COMDANY
1 Real Estates 9972 100
1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
Sk No. Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Shares
Company Subsidiary/ Held
Associate
N.A
N.A N.A N.A
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding: !
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year Y%
Shareholders Demat Physical Tatal % of Demat Physieal Total o | E
Total Total ;g‘
Shares Share -
s ng
the
yea
A. Promoters
(1) Indian _ _
a) Individual/HUF 0 2158406 2158406 72.59 0 2158406 2158406 | 72.59 | nil
by Cential Govt. 0
L©) _State Govt.(s) 0




) AUy vl e

e) Banks/FI

f) Any other....

Sub-Total (A) (1):- 0 2,165,206 | 2,165,206 | 72.82 0 2,165,206 | 2,165,206 | 72.82 | .
(2). Foreign
a) NRI- lndividuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks /FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Any other.... !
Sub-Total (A) (2):- 0 2,165,206 | 2,165,206 | 72.82 0 2,165,206 | 2,165,206 | 72.82 | i1
Total shareholding of 0 2,165,206 | 2,165,206 | 72.82 0 2,165,206 | 2,165,206 | 72.82
Promoter (A) = (A)(1) +
(A)Q2)
B. Public Shareholding
1, Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 1,725 1,725 0.06 0 1,725 1,725 0.06 | ni
b) Baiks/Fl 0 271152 271152 9.12 0 271152 271152 9.12 nil
c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 nil
0 0 0 0
d) State Govt.(s) 0 60024 60024 2.02 0 60024 60024 2.02 nil
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 nil
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 il
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 nil
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 nil
Sub<Tatal (B) (1):- 0 353,901 353,901 1191 0 353,901 353,901 | 11.91
2. Non-lInstitutions
a) Bodies Corp,
i) Indian 0 344113 344113 11.57 0 344113 344113 1157 | NIX
l]) ONerseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals
c)
i) Individual 0 110234 110234 371 0 110234 110234 3.9 NIL
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh _ .
i) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh i
d) Others Clearing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .
Members
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Others




Sub-Total (B) (2):- 454,347 454,347 15.28 454,347 454,347 1528 | NIL
Total Public 808,248 808,248 27.18 808,248 808,248 27.18 | NIL
shhrellold@g B) =
(BY(1)+ (B)(2) ;
C. Shares held by 0 o 0 0 0 0
Custodian for GDR’s
& ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 2,978,454 | 2,973,454 100 2,973,454 | 2,973,454 100

ii) Shareholding of Promoters:

Sk No: Shareholder’s Name Sharehelding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
No. of Shares % of total %of No. of Shares % of %of | share holding
Shares of the | Shares total Share during the
company Pledge Shares 8 year
d/ of the Pledg
encum compan ed/
bered y encu
to total mbere
shares dto
total
shares
1 ARUN KUMAR PODDAR 980,397 32.97 NIL 980,397 32.97 | NL NIL
2. RITIKA PODDAR 216000 7.27 NIL 216000 7.27 NiL NIL
2 DEVASHISH PODDAR 111,400 3.75 NiL 111,400 3.75 NIL NIL
4. AYUSH PODDAR 503,016 16.92 NIL 503,016, 16.92 NIL NIL
S RASHMI PODDAR 200,000 6.73 NIL 200,000 6.73 NIL NIL
6 MANSI PODDAR 24,362 0.82 NIL 24,362 0.82 NIL NIL
7 MANISH PODDAR 29,200 0.98 NIL 29,200 0.98 NIL NIL
8 ASHISH PODDAR 49,600 1.67 NIL 49,600 1.67 NIL NIL
9 B.K. PODDAR (BK. 24,000 0.81 NIL 24,000 0.81 NIL NIL
PODDAR HUF)
10. ARUN KUMAR 3600 0.12 NIL 3600 0.12 NIL NIL
PODDAR & SONS
(HUF)
11 RAM CHANDRA 7,200 0.24 NIL 7,200 0.24 NIL NIL
PODDAR CHARITABLE
TRUST
12 MADHUSHREE 8,072 0.27 NIL 8,072 0.27 NIL NIL
PODDAR
8,072
13 SAROJ KUMAR 711 0.02 NIL 711 0.02 NIL NIL
PODDAR
14 ASHOK KUMAR 817 0.03 NIL 817 0.03 NIL NIL
PODDAR
15 JYOTSNA PODDAR 6 NIL 6 NiL NIL
16 PAVAN KUMAR 25 NIL 25 = NIL NIL
PODDAR
iy PODDAR EXPORTS 170 NIL 170 NIL. NIL
LTD.




COMMERCE LTD. 0.21 0.21
19 PRAGATI BUSINESS 400 0.01 NIL 400 0.01 NIL NIL
LTD.
. iii) _Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change). —NOT APPLICABLE
Sl No. Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the year
the year
No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total Shares of the
Shares of the. company
company
1 At the begin'ning of the year No Changes during. the Year
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifying
the reason for increase / decrease (allotment
/ transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.):
3 At the end of the year
i) Slxarellolili(lrg Pattern of top ten Sharelolders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SL No. For each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareliolding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year
the year _
No. of Shares. % of total No. of Shares % of total Shares of the
Shares of the company
company
1 Pench Valley Coal Co Ltd 192800 6.48 192800 648
2 A.P. Industrial Development Corporation 99950 3.36 99950 3.36
3 WBIDC 146080 491 146080 4.91
4, United India Insurance Co Ltd 21000 0.71 21000 0.71
5 Unit Trust Of India 1725 0.06 1725 0.06
3 Amrex Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 24891 0.84 24891 0.84
) Hope Cardamon Estates Itd 25641 0.86 25641 0.86
8 Poddar Udyog Ltd. 50000 1.68 50000 1.68
9 Governor of West Bengal 60000 2.02 60000 2.02
10 Milan Sen 5600 0.19 5600 0.19
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl. No. Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during the
the year year
No. of % of total Shares No. of Shares % of total Shares
Shares of the company of the company
Directors: ;
1. _ Mr. Arun Kumar Poddar
At the beginning of the year 980,397 32.97 980,397 32.97
Date wise Increase / Deerease in Share - - - -
holding during the year specifying the reason
for increase / decrease(allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 980,397 32.97 980,397 32.97
2. Mr.Ashék Kumar Saraf _
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date-wise Increase /'Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the reason
for increase./ decrease (allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.): :
At the end of the year: Nil Nil Nil Nil




(@) Salary as: per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Incomie-tax Act, 1961

Y Mr Jugal Kishore Agarwal
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the reason
forincrease 7 decrease (allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Mr Pradip Ghosh
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Degrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the reason
for increase / decrease (allotment / iransfer /
boniis / sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
5 My . Trakad Uma Shiva Ramakrishnan
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase./ Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the reason
for increase / decrease (allotmenit./ transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc,):
Atthe end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment: (lacs.)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i. Principal Amount 33.06 0.00 0.00 33.06
ii. Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii. Interest accrued butnot due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i-+ii-+iii) 33.06 0.00 0.00 33.06
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
Addition 0.63 0.00 0.00 0.63
Reduction (21.65) 0.00 0.00 (21.65)
Net Change Indebtedness (21.02) 0.00 0.00 (21.02)
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i.  Principal Amournt 12.04 0.00 0.00 12.04
il.  Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ili. Interest accrued but notdue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 12.04 0.00 0.00 12.04
V.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A, Remuneration to Managing Direcior, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs.lacs)
Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
No.
] Gross sdlary 17.00 17.00
17.00 17.00

{b) Value of perquisites w's 17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢) Profits in lieu of salary. under section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
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Stock Option

RS o

Sweat Equity

Commission
= as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify 3 E
| Total (A) 17.00 17.00
Ceiling as per the Act - =
* Within the lirhit of 10% of net.profit of the company
B. Remuneration to other directors: (Amount in lacs)
NSl._ Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No.
1 | Independent Directors
a) | Fee for attending board/committee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
meetings
b | Eanndadon 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00
c) | Others, pleasé specify i 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (1) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. | Other Non-Executive Directors 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
a) | Fee for attending board/committee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
meetings
b) | Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
¢) | Others, Professional Fees 0.00 000 0.00 0:00
Total (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (B)=(142) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Toatal Managerial Remuneération 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD: (Amount in lacs.)
lil. Particulars of Remiuneration Key Managgerial Personnel
0.
CFo Company Secretary Total
] Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per-provisions contained in section 3.00 7.20 10.20
17(1) of the Income-tax. Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites w's 17(2) Income-tax Act, 0.00 0.00 0.00
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 0.00 0.00 0.00,
Income-tax Act, 196]
2 Stock Option 0.00. 0.00 0.00
3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Commission : 0.00 0.00 0.00
- as % of profit 0.00 0.00 0.00
_ - others, specify... 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 3.00 7.20 10.20

VL

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PODDAR PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Poddar Projects Limited

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Poddar Projects Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31° March 2019, the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in Equity
and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statement").

in our opipion and to the best of information and accordirg to the explanations givento us,
the aforesaid financial statements, subject to items referred to in the basis of qualified
opinion, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting
Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March
31, 2019, the profit, comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) together with independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAlI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide the basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.
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Attention is invited to note ne. 34(2)(a) on non-availability of records of Textile Division for
our audit, note no.34(12) on pending execution of certain sale agreements leading to our
inability to verify advance from customers, note no. 34(1)(a) on pending reconciliation of
Income Tax liability between book records and Assessment proceedings, note no.34(2)(c)
on non-availability of details. on leasehold land net being accounted for as per Ind AS &
Note 34(4)(b) regarding non ascertainability of tenure of depasit against tenancy
agreement.

Focus of Emphasis
We hereby draw attention of note no.34(11) without qualifying to the effect of non
confirmation of balances from parties to current assets and liabilities.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming of opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit

S matters / _
A. Revenue Recognition Our key procedures included the following:
Revenues for the company are primarily | a) Assessed the appropriateness of the
from rental income and sale of premises. company’s revenue recognition accounting
policies by comparing with the applicable

Rental income is recognized on actual accounting  standards. No  discount,
basis which are free from dispute. incentive or rebate is involved in respect of

the company.

Further, the company focuses on | b) Tested the operating effectiveness of the
revenue as a key performance measure. general IT control environment and key IT
Therefore, revenue was our area of application contrels over recognition of

focus included whether the accruals revenue,
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were misstated and appropriately | ¢) Performed test of details:

valued, whether the  significant i)Agreed: samples of -contractual

transactions had been accurately agreements & tenancy agreement

recorded in the Statement of Profit and documentation and approvals; and

Loss.

i} Obtained supporting documents for
transactions recorded either side of
year end to determine whether revenue
was recoghized in the correct period.

d) Performed focused analytical procedures:
Compared the revenue for the current year
with the prior year for variance/ trend
analysis and where relevant, completed
further inquiries and testing to corroborate
the variances by considering both internal
and external benchmarks, overlaying our
understanding of enterprise; and

g) Considered the appropriatengss of the
company’s description of the accounting
policy, disclosures refated to revenue, and
whether these are adequately presented in

the financial statement.

B. Litigations and claims — provisions
and Contingent Liabilities

liabilily and provision far contingencies,

tax and other litigations / negotiations that
are pending with different statutory
authorities including KPT

Whether a liability is recognized or

As disclosed in Notes detailing contingent

the company is involved in direct, indirect

Our key procedures included the following:

e Assessed the the

company’s accounting policies, including

appropriates  of
those relating to provision and contingent
iability by comparing with the applicable
accounting standards;

s Assessed the company

identification of the pending litigations /

and

process for

negotiations completeness  for

<
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disclosed as a centingent liability in the
financial statements s  inherently
judgmental and dependent on a number.
of  significant  assumptions  and
assessments.

The amounts involved are potentially
significant and determining the amount, if
any, to be recognized or disclosed in the
financial  statements, is inherently
subjective.

financial reporting and also for monitoring
of significant developments in relation to
such pending litigations/negotiation;

» Engaged subject matter specialists to gain an
understanding of the cumrent status of
litigations / negotiation and monitored changes
in the disputes, if any, through discussions
with the management and by reading external
advice received by the company, where
relevant, to establish that the provisions had
been appropriately recognized or disclosed as
required;

» Assessed the company's assumptions and
estimates in respect of litigations/ negotiation,
including the liabilites or provisions
recognized or contingent liabilities disclosed in
the financial statements. This involved
assessing the probability of an unfavorable
outcome of a given proceeding and the
reliability of estimates of related amounts;

« Performed substantive procedures on the
underlying calculations  supporting  the
pravisions recorded;

» Assessed the management's conclusions
through undersianding precedents set in
similar cases;j and

Considering the appropriateness of the company's!

description of the disclosures related to litigations

negotiation and whether these adequately|
presented in the financial statements.
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[ C. Valuation of investments and Our key procedures included the following:
impairment thereof

Ascertainment of fair value of the investee
i. Non-Current Investments in based on latest available audited financial

Unquoted equity instruments. SaeTeh

ii. Mutual Funds Statement verified with reference to duly
declared NAV of the investee.

iii. Depasit with Bank. Verified with reference fo banks’ confirmation

and computation of interest acerued thereon.

D. Evaluation of uncertain tax provision
The company has material uncertain tax | _ y L
; Non ascertainment of possible income tax
rovision including matters unt hich | ., ..
P i‘ . f 3 ‘?er et liability by the management prompted
involves significant jud it to de ‘ = !
v 9 I e = qualificatary reference to the effect in the
the possible outcome of these disputes |
‘ report
- refer to note no.34(1)(a) to the financial

statement.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, and Shareholder’s Information, put does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with eur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other informatien is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to. report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respeect to preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
ehanges in equity and cash flows of the companies in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Board of Directors of the
company is also responsible for maintenance of the adequate ascounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the companies
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate gceounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the company is
responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the gping concern
basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the cempany or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternatjve but:to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible. for everseeing the company's financial
reporting proecess.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in acecordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the econoemic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respensive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143
(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company which has companies incorparated in India, has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence ebtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events. or conditions may cause the
company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the company to express an epinion on the
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financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performarice of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasenably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any ideritified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We eommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audijt matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid financial statements.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive [ncome), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Fjows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies {indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2016.

€) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the direetors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the vperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure 1”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V
of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:
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i. The company's dispute with Kolkata Port Trust under negotiation and income tax
demand referred to note no.34(13)(a)&(b) of the of financial statements;

i. The company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts
which may lead to any material foreseeable loss;

i In absence of any sum specified in Rule 11(d), the question of delay in
transferring such amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund does not

arise..

2 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order") issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
s Annexure 2” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

‘For BASU CHANCHAM! & DER
CHARTERED ACCOURTANTS
R. No-304049€

= bz 7
BLIWANATH CrteTTOPADHYAY

Patiner
{1 No-051800)

Place : Kolkata
Date : 29" June, 2019
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Annexuire-1

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) referred to in Para V (2) (f) of our

report of even date.

We have audited the internal financial centrols over financial reporting of Poddar Projects:

Limited (“the Company”) as of 31°" March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of IND AS

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company coensidering the essential components of internal control stated in the
“Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to comipany's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion oin the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
'Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicakle to an audit of Internal Financial
Cantrols and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating

effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls ever financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing thi risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of IND AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audif opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of IND AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's intemal financial contrel over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

| unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur ard not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 315 March 2019, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For BASU CHANCHAN & DEB
CHARTEREDAZCOUNTANTS

R No%MGd;p? _
| IS WARATHLGHATTOPAD!
Place : Kolkata ;'«N(A Fcagwowqw
M. Ro-B51600)
Date : 29" June, 2019
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Annexure-Z

gﬁgXﬂR& TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT AS REFERRED TO IN PARA OF THE SAID REPORT OF EVEN
1. & ‘The Company has maintained proper records shewing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets. No records for fixed assets in Textile unit is made available
for our verification.
b. Fixed assets were not physically verified during the year and we are unable to comment on
discrepancy if any between book records and Physical Assets.
¢ ‘Thetitle.deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

2. On the basis of our examination of the records of inventory, we are of the opinion that the company
is maintaiing proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the:hooks
of accounts.

3. The Company has granted no loan to any company from or other parties covered in the register
maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Loans and advances given were in due compliances of Section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act,
2013. However, loans aggregating Rs.25,71,596/- are free of interest.

5. The company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of section 73 to 76.or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under and as such the
question of compliaitce under the Companies Act or any other directives or orders does not arise.

6. On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion that central government has prescribed
maintenance of cost record for textile unit under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of products of ‘the eompany’ covered under the rules under said section.
However the unit is under prolonged to lockeut thereby doing away with maintenance of such
records.

7. a) According to information and explanations given to us, the conipany is regular in depositing

with appropriate authorities undisputed statatory dues including, provident fund, employees
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth ta, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value

added tax, goods & selvice tax, ¢ess and other statutory due, to the extent applicable to it.

b) There is disputed amourit due for payment on account of Wealth tax, Customs. duty, lncome
Tay, Bxcise Duty, Service Tax, Cess or any other statutory dues except CST Rs.0.14 lacs, PF
Rs.0.01 lacs, WBST Rs.5.76 lacs, Govt. of West Bengal 3.00 lacs and dues of Rs. 451.00 lacs to

Kolkata Port Trust which is under negotiation,
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8. Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanations given by the

10.

11,

12

13.

14

16.

management, the. company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or
any bank. It hasno debenture holder,

No money has been raised by the company by way of public offer during the year. Term Loans
obtained are applied for the purpose for which it was raised.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on the company by its
officers or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our-audit.

The managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

The ‘Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly paragraph 2 (xii) of the order is not
applicable:

Al the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and details of related parties transaction have been disclosed in the
financial statement.

‘The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully.
or-partly convertible debentures during the year.

The Company hias notentered into any non-cash transactions with directors.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45.1A of Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

Foy BASU CHARCHANI 8 DEB
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
R. H0.-304043E

AHAT PLC_ ADHYAY
it

Porbngr
(M. Ho.051630)

Place : Kolkata
Date : 29" June, 2019



PODDAR PROJECTS LIMITED

CIN No. L51909WB1963PLC025750
Reg Address: 18, Rabindra Sarani, 9th Floor, Poddar Court, Kolkata-700001
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2019

v
cro

COWMPANY SECRETARY

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulares Note No As At ;%DT.‘JM arch, AsAti&s(;Mm&;,
T [ASSETS ] e —
1. Non-current assets '
a) Property Plant & eqipinent assets 5 97,630,092 [07462:216,
b) Capital wotk-in-progress 10,032,220 1247228
©) Financial Assets
i) Non-Current Investments 6 28,915,225 37417304
ii) Long-term loans and advances ) 236,059,309 l 185,541,622
2. Curvent assets
a) inventories 8 804,161,385 829;144 437
b) Financial Assets .
i) Current Investments 9 10,976,910 | 10;000;000
it) Trade Receivables 10 10,520,808 | 8,855,703
iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 11 7,310,458 10;465,007
v) Other Finaricial Assets 12 121,240,386 | 115,566, 153
¢) Other Current Assets 13 156,980,802 147,928,110.
d) Current Tax Asset 14 5,952,566 | 2055631410
Total: 1,489,780,162 | 1,474 590;510'
U |LIABILITIES - B
L. Equity !
a) Equity Share Capital 15 29,734,540 29;734,540,
b) Other Equity 16 1,270,338,359 1,220:423, 153 |
LIABILITIES
2. Non-current liabilities
a) Fivancial Liabilities
1) Other Finaneial Liabilities 7
I) Long Term Borrowings 17 214,505 Jg‘% 1,064
2) Other long term liabilitics 18 21,401,500 16,035,646
b) Provisions 19 8,513,915 G7:473
¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities 32 8,353,709 1,455,385
3. Curreiit Liabilities
| aj Financial Liabilities -
i) Trade Payables 20 36,065,516 46,489,365
b) Other Cuirent Liabilities (Financial) )| 21,943,262 22 /M 5536.
c) Other Current Liability (Non - Financial)
i) Current Tax Liability 22 . 14,267,333
it) Others ' 23 67,031,874 96, 064,651
¢) Provisiens 24 26,182,982 26,176,380
Total: 1,489,780,162 1,474,590,510
Corporate & general information 1 For PODDAR PROJECTS LTDH.
Basis of Preparation and presentation of financial Statement 2 [Ei ‘&—7
Significant Accounting Policies ForBASUCHANCHANI&DEB 3 fLemo fiany
Significant Judgement & Key Estimate CHARTEZ%DQS%%‘IEA"’S 4 e =
As per our Report Attached L v ARUN KuM e
For NATH CHATTOPADHYAY DIN : 0159830
Parloer
HIREEL For PODDAR PROJECTS LTG)
PlaiKolkata, PODDAR PROJECTS LTD. @'\ & -A—WN
RN T / i< I
Date: .7 G JU3: 209 C\}&!‘”) DIRECTON
Hor PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.




PODDAR PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN No, L'51909W319_63PLC025’7 50
Reg Address: 18, Rabindra Sarani, oth Floor, poddar Court, Ko\kata~7000'()1
STATEMENT OF PROF ENDED
ount in Rs)
N T Note =
Sy No- particulares e, 2018-19 201718
i Revenue from Operations 25 147,896,925 ‘1»»0‘6;33528?7‘:
P Othey {ncome 23 37,,‘_)'56 2;80 4 155 ‘@,338‘!
3 Total Income fram Continuing Operations (1+2) 18'5,85‘8,2[15' 3 878274
4 Expenses: J
urchiased 26 \,_393,761
%) 726,’5‘49—,433

(a) |Cost of material ¥
(b) |Dectease /() Inerease in inventories:
(<) Building Deve)opménthpense’s

(d) Employees penefits Expenses

14,020,243
8,426,428
83,974
12,470,102

(¢) [Finance Cost
) Depreciation & amortisation Expenses 5
(g) |Other Eipenscs 8 51625951
Tota) Txpenses fyrom Continuing Operations (Sub',total 4) 11 5_;?;{;9,8‘)'3 .
5 profit/(Joss) pefore 'except'\oi\'a\ & extra ordinary jtems (3-4) 70,583,312 "2’-5:;4’7»9;915
6 Exceptional Ttems 2 &
7 (Pt / (Loss) he fotie exU2 orditiugy ttems (346) 70,583,312 @;ﬂ“",?c’l'?"&?ﬁ-
8 Extia Ordipary Hems (Priov period Adjustment) - -
9 Profit before X (7-8) 70,583.312 25479975
10| |Taxexpenses:
(ay|Current 1% 15,182,510 6393290
(b)|[Deferrcd X 32 6,531,016 (1305252
( )| Taxes jor Eaxlier Years L ARA04
(1} |profit | (Loss) from cqntir_\u'mg.opemtions (9-10) 26,3478 33
v P cofit £ (Loss) from discontinuing opeidiions (Read with par2 B Y
(152000 A§24)
13 Tax Gxpeases © [ ([{scontinuingoperat‘\oﬂs
14 profivh (Loss) RIS CIN of d'\SC,om'muin'g:operaﬁm\s (12-13) - . =
15 profit / (1.0sS) for the year 1L+ 14y 48,869,787 252‘4‘.7,533
Other Comhrehensive {ncome from continuing gperation i
Ttems that will not be veclassi fied to profit & loss 33 \,412,_724 ;2*1;533@‘
remesurement of define penefit plan
ncome Vax rekiling 10 this items (367 308) 2 Kéﬁﬁﬁ_
Other Comprclgms‘_'w.e 1ncome for the yem'-(net of tax
from continuing O‘pemﬁol_\)
Total Other Comprehensive Income ~1,045416 I 194,248
Total Cu‘mm'ehensiye tncome 49,91 5,202 2&,5¢1.,‘-;].8L ll
16 Earpings 48 PLEE Aty shaved e
(a) | Basic _ 16.79 #:86.
() Dituted 16.79 8:86
17 18i vrﬁ[‘xta_nt.A(:cc)un‘ﬂﬂe {icics and TOLES on Accqums'.,ng o34 L |
As perour Repoit Attached orNARCTS..
= aatae o BSUCHCIAIADED For PODDAT PROSECTS VIO
CHARTERED AT (NTANTS X
R, No,304049E e LU
(ot o
£~ GRWRNATH ‘nmnum ARUN KUMAR PTDH R
place:  Kolkat? L uﬁ‘,&‘f{m o 01‘3983\)4
pate:”™ )k I , ODDARE QIECTS LD
For PODDARPROJECTS 1T PODDAR PROJECTS LD e
ANV CON S _ myﬁcmp
g e QU\‘?\L\\S\W\’\E Q%RLﬁL_
COMPARNY SECRETARY D VNS 6318 9% 2:\3

CFO



{Amount in Rs.}
Statement Of €hange In Equity For The Year Ended 31st March, 2019

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 29,734,540.00
Add/(Less) :Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 29,734,540.00
Add/(Less) : Changes in equity sharé capital during the year
Balance as at'31st March, 2019 28,734,540.00
Other Equity )
Other
comprehensive
ierdirs Reserve & Surplus - : ~ Income Total Other
2 e ) nvestmen e
Capital Revaluation 0»?3._ e Allowance General Retained s ; Equity
et g Redemption Allowance R Reserve: Esrnin comprechensive.
=5 ST Reserve: Reserve: =~Mmﬂﬂ» Fevios e Income.
. ised:
Balance as at 31st March, 2017 | 6,821,557 897,382,993 3,000,000 1,928,500 7,444,300 37,053,936 241,657,651 {1,395.569) 1,193,893.368
Profit for the year 2017-18 o 26,335.537 194.248 26,529:785
Re-investment for the year & 2 - ] - - - s )
Total comprehensive Increase for the year - = - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 R 6,821,557 897,382,993 3,000,000 1,928,500 7,444,300 37,053,936 267,893,188 (1.201,321) 1,220,423,153
Profit for the year 2018-19 J _ . | 48,869,787 1,045,416 49,915.202
Re-investment for the year <] = .- 5 = - B
Total comprehensive Increase for the year ” - - - - s -
Inter Reserve Transfer 1 (1.928.500) 1.928.500
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 6,821,557 897,382,993 3,000,000 = - 7444300 38.982,436 316,862,974 (155,905) 1,270,338,359
[¥SMicse  For PODDAR PROSECTS LTD. “or PODDAR PROJECTS LTD
HARTERED ACCOUNTANTS -
For PODDAR PROJECTS LTD. B No-204049F ¥
i Euad A1 B
U“ﬂmﬁ@d.m\\ DIRECTOR

ARUN: KUMAR PODDAR
DIN : 015398304

PODDAR BROJECTS LTD.

.fwc;yfxﬁz oRE v/gﬁpﬁwf
DIN: 04329219

ORI STORETARY




PODDAR PROJECTS LIMITED

4 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED:3IST MARCH, 2019
’ PARTICULARS ASON ST AS ONSIST
. _ = = MARCH, 2019 MARCH, 2018
= = momxcr METHOB:; it
- A. [CASII' FLON FROM Q}‘ER‘A'FJN G‘ACTN lT(ES - ¥
| Profit/(Loss) befare Tax and Exra ordinary lemsas per IND - AS 70,383,312 25467.975
Adjusitaent for IND-AS 1/219,807 7.991.089 |
. : Profit/(Loss) beTore, Tay and.Exira bréinary; (tems afEr VD - AS adjusunent ! 71,803,114 |, 33,455,096
Adinstment for: '
Diprecition 12,470,102 | 5240,149
Profit/: Loss orrsale;:of Fixed Assets I (5674 (%26,655)
2 Interesy Expenses : 74,086 368,969
Acergtion in Current [nvestment i {882,4793( -
Pifion-sale of invesiment, -} (28,126)),
Incor from Dividend (149,041) (51,800)
Liabjlity rie longerrequired written Back (10,898,457 :
interést lncowme: . 125:963.924)! £22851,109)
O”;Iemimg,l’mm before reoiking Copital Chargéss _ o) dodd7.s2a| T 15430404
Adjustment for: ]
Trade:& other Receivablg 25,618.464 '25;55&632:}
Invéntories (24,983,052, (3.462,728)
Teade & other Payable: y (39,01 7,781) 12,609,053
0 Direct Taxes Paidi _ (74727203 (7,758.559)
Net Cash Geregated from Operafing Activities —— = 589,427 | 42,371,802
B |GCASH ELOW FROW INVESTING ACTIVITIES. J
i Interdsy received 25963934 22,851,109
Safe of ivestrient 10,000:000 $5.028,1%6 1
Acquisitionof Fixed Asssts {2,976,8%4) (#912,374)
Sale.al Rixed Assets 358918, 2,364,900
Pirchases of COUP ¢4,784:992)} (3352215)
SaleofCWI P! - 18404208
Purchase.af [nveshirent: 5 (39,304,9503]
Ingome From, Dividend. g 149,041 41,800
(Nes Cash Gepreried Trom lnvestipg Aclivitics B 24,689,996 31,140,604

C_Jeasa y@wmno»mxﬁc?qunx&nﬂs‘

Shart Teim Bonowinies Revejved - 293,651
Shor Terin Borrawings Repaid 13,091,583; _
Lang ter laan & advanices réceivable, (51,095297) (84:108.982)
| Increase/ (decrease) long, teo [oar! $643N17 2,467,502
Brgceeds frory othienl.ong Teem Loan - (9:453)
mremu?md ) . ~ 8 - (74,086)[ (398,909)1
o [Net Casifconmred"i'rmcmnnnémg Activitics, : = Te— T (28,433,983 (81.7S6.79N)}
Netinesease/Decrease in Crish & Cash, Equivalents (A+B+C) B (3154,369)] (8:244,385)
Opening Cushr& Cash. Exuivalents 10465817 B:709902:
- Closini Cash & Cashi Equivalerts' 7340458, 10:465,017
. Bﬂtnn\CESWl(bl badks-in GusEn account 7,189,704 6'159.0,\54_5
['dralts it Fand 36,000 3639640
Cmb-.m Hand 90,664, . 134,332
Clesing Cash & Cash Equivalems i 7310458 10465017

The Cash:Flow Stdlementlias beeir prejiare updér indirgtt tethod as presceibed by, AS - 3 (Cash Flew Statement) issised By, [CAT

As per our'Repost Attaghed: F o
or BASU. CHANCHANI% 0% 2ge T4
Fop wg&nEoAcdwﬂ%rg Por TODTk

Prace KalLa(a

Dth i l‘b,' 93’8

= r\_"-‘ ']

ror,,

EXSONY K’UMAR PQ@'

t?m'E’ODD RER .;JE,C%"S AT 73T "O,J?)'f:g msgfggé;“"b'i‘ﬁ
. = 3T O LiD.

= """“GBC”‘S
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Note No-=3

SCHEDULE OF FIXED ASSETS ANNEX ED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2019
(Amount in Rs.]
ot _ ~ GrossBlock & Depreéciation / Aniorfisation . Net Black
Deemed Cost'/ Addifion Sale/ . A *; T | Sale./ e o il 1 e |
‘51 |Particulars of Assets Valueason |, ... |adjustment Ol BAEMEE Totalason' | o che vear | Adjustment For wm.s_ | znwﬁ _E_.” &
| 01.04.18 Acquisition durinig this ason 31.03.19 | 01.04.18 during tiiis 31.03.19 Amoun ‘
i) | TANGIBLE ASSETS _ ] i E
Toint Venture Land At Burdwan 1.500.000,00 1,500,000 : 1,500,000
Air Condition | 1,682,170 60,485 1,742,653 | 988,522 | 463 466 - 1.450,988 | | 291.664
Building 90.161,649 112,073 90,275.722 $.218:568 4254338 12,472.907 __77.800.816
Computer 2:626,636. 92.559 2,600.] 2.716.615 | 1.995.518 503.628 1244 2,500,390 216,225
Flectric Installation _ 5,001.883 - 5.001,883 4,085,470 396,008 1.481.478 520,404
|Parking ‘Manaeement System 300672 = S b 300.672 56,444 | 34,379 110,823 3 189,849
Office Equipment 5442 885, 863,546, _ 6306429 | | 4,186.187 826,210 5,012,397 1.294.083
Fire Fighting Equipment __ 3,768,346 133,500, 3901946 | 2430638 957,943 3,388,581 515,365
Furniture & Fixture 3,524.294 1.369,809 3,804:053 1| 2226247 388,336 2:614,582.{ |, 1 279471
" [Plaay & Machinery 4,263,268 9:375 269247 4.003,396 | 3.758.926 8.667 3,767.593, 235,808
Motor Cycle 92,000 _- 92,000 87.400 = _ $7.400 #4600
Health Clob Equipment i 114,490 - | 114,490 113.343 = I . 113,543 1,147
Air Condifionifig Plant | 123,874 - I 123.874 117,681 ] - - 117,681 6,194
Pumps & Tube Well 156341 - | 156,541 131.548 3,720 ; 135,268 ] 21,273
Land At Pune ) 2.029:353 | 36,000 _ 2.065,353 | 3 = - 2:.065,353
Lift 9,265,972 254.238 9,520,210, 7,546,501 310.029. 7.856.530 1,663,680
Motor Car 14,590,312 | - . 14,590.512 5,122,486 | _  4.205,797 9.328,385 5,262,229
Televission. 543.000, 45,312 . 588312 | 77323 95873 ] 173:696 414,616
Tetty 67.071 |, 67.071 = I - 1 -
Dev Reg: Of Leasehold Land . 311,800 371800 | - 311,800
Land: Freehold , 2,128,686, ) 2,128.686 . = 2,138,686,
Building (Factory) 224.249 724,249 | I _ = i 774,249
Plant & Muchingry 1 1.536:758 - 1,536,758 | i - |l 1,536,758
Furiiituire & Fixtures 28.524 | 28524 | . | - Uk 28524
Office Equipiment 11,538 nssg |l ) - _ 11,538
Electric Installation 72,998 _ 72,998, - 72,998
Pump & Tubewells | 25236 j 3 25236 T » 75.236
Pump & Tiibewells (08-08-14). 11,043 11,083 | L 1,462.30 i 1,462 9,581
Fork, Lifts & Cranes 1 A 1 J ] 1
Total: ] 148605,518 | 2,976,894 338918 151,243,495 | | 41,143,300 |  12:468,858 | 1,244 | 53,613,402 97,630,092
(i} | Capital Work-in-progress _ 1747228 | R7BA992 | _ | 10.052220 | 1T [ I [ 10032320




Fixed Assets:

YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2018

- .Gross Block. Depreciation / Amartisition Not.Bloek |
e tr e e Deemed Cost/ | Addition: Sale/ | Gross Balance as || Totalasen | . = Sale [ Total ason, | | Net carrying
LR Valoeason | Acquisition | adjustment | on31.03.38 (| 060417 forfhe year | sdjustment | _ 31.03.18 Amount__
TANGIBLE ASSETS. K - _ i e y ik
Joint Venture Land at Burdwan 1.500.600 - 1.500.000 - - - - 1,500.000
Land at Pune 1,797.240 232,113 - 2.079.355 - = i N - - 2,029,353
of Leasehold Land 311.800 e 5 ~3]1.800 4 = = 311,800
Freehold Land 31502,03) =il 2.128.686 - -k 2 2.128:686
Baildiiig (Alisha Bus Terminal) 84.951.867 .- 84.951,867 1,504,293 | 1,504393 3,008,786 81.943:081
Plant & Machingry 2,005,806. 38,000 = 2,041,806 g 706.00 106 2,041,100
Comnputer 730,363 312,695 - 1,043,058 271645 140274 411,919 631,139
Fire Fighting Equipment _3.082.010 _ :24:4:900 2,837,110 1,005,827 | 493477 | _ 1499304 1,337,806,
Furniture & Fixture | 528411 43,845 - 572,256 175,293 70,441 245,734 326,522
Electric Installation 1,740:077 99,539 - 1,839,616 424,067 426,138 | 850,205 989:411
“Parking mafngeiiient System: 283021 - 283,021 20,112 18.681 38,793 2447
Motor Car 10,105,861 2.485,063 12.590.924 1,195510 1,927,389 3,122.899 0,468,025
Motor Cyéle: 4.600 - 4,600, & 1 = = 4600
Health Club Equipmests 1,148 & 1.148 - = =11l 1,148
Lift ] 1,319,323 600,000 | 1,919,323 80978 118,874 199:852 1,719:471 |
Air Conditioning Plant 6,194 . 6.194 3 2 - 6,194
Office Equipmenis 2,402,855 358119 2.960.974 || 540,771 458,321 . 999,092 1,961,882
Water Supply System 67,223 67223 |' 2319 | 3.632 5,951 61,272
Factory Building 324,249 224,249 - - 224,249
Jetty 67,071 67.071 - 2 = 67071
Forks Lifts.& Crains, 1 1 - } - |
Television 545.000 543.000 71.823 17823 | L 465,177
Total: 114,629,151 | 4,912,374 1,618,245 | 117,923,280 3,220,915 | 240,149 £ 10,461,064 107,462,216
Capital Work-in-progress ] 16319221 | 3.332,215 | (18.404.208)] 1,247,228, | | | 1.247,228

Note; §). Leasehold Land relates to 600 Katha of land

at At Taratolla taken on lease




Note No-6

Non-Currcot-Investnient (helil af cost unless smfed atherwise):

{Amountin Rs,)
No Of Shares As| No OfShares't  Eace As At31st AVAL3Ist
S1 N Particulares On 31st AsOn3ist | Value(Rs.) | March, 2019 \‘ Mrreh, 2018,
) March'2019 | March2048 2
(A) |Neade lovesment @ |
1 1In Bquity lnvesient (Unquofed & fully paid) ‘
Paddyr:Services Ly, 200 200 10 = L
Basu Properties Ltd. 125 125 100 1,598,735.69 15993366 |
Amalgamated Fuels Lid. 35800 35300 10 139,078.94 | 150,120 |
Enterpeising House, Development pvt 1td 30000 F0000! 10 152,215.67 | 300000
Tivoli Park Apartments Put, Ld, 99220 | 99120 100 | 1477369445 12909,329
Gurukripa vyapaarpyt Itd 1100 1160 10 - -
Risewell Marketing Pvt Ltd 1600 1600 ) = &
Delighit Vinimay pvt lid 1600 1600 10 . 3
Yidl Commercial pvt Itd 1900 90p 10 79,688.44 79,792,
Siwagat commercisl pvt lrd 1900 1900 10 58,927,24 |, 5,028
Tradelinks Vinimay Pvt ltd 1300 300 10 49.936.57 Al JE
Pashupati dealecs pvt itd 1900 | 1900 10 49,742.86 50,026
Prestamenclave pvt ltd 1900 1900 10 92,189.41 §3:881
Style vyapaar pvt itd 1600 600 i0 - -
Starpoint tradelinks pvt ltd 1100 11065 10 @ -
Pragati Commtrade pvt Itil 1900 1900 10 56,639.94 56,484
Stayiior & Co. Ltd 36782 36782 10 338,074.82 347492
Nissan Educational services pvt Itd 1700 1700 10 - -
Hepe Housing Development Corporation Ltd. 2250 2250 10 24,952.81 24 588
Poddar Leasing & Holding Lid. 9800 9800 10 64,171.88 1G3EBTG6
Dharamvir Merchandise Pvt. Ltd. 2400 2400 10 473,076.01 472,350.
Nissan Developers & Propertics Pyt Lid. 9500 H300, W0 1,001,000.88 | 828:600.
B.P,Poddar Hospital & Medical Research Lid. 840500 4050 10 8941,612.12 [ 8,569,271
Subhi Properties Py, Lid. 1900 R 10 . -
Boss Profiles Lid, 6000000 | 6UBACOO 10 - | .
Atlanta biological pvt Itd 97500 97500 10 a 75,060
i) [1nvestument it preference shitre (unguoted & Tully pakl)
Poddar Heritage Ltd. - 13.3% cumulative preference share 700 T00. 100 -
Pragati Business Limited - 9% redeemable Non cutyulative |
preterence shares 11000 ' [Hood 100 &
(B)[Other than. Trade Dbrvestmenis
i)| Investuieat in eéquity instr :
Apeejay India Lid_ 200 300, 10 1,000 1,000
Uhited Spirit Ltd. 4 , 4 10 _ 2,237 |. Z:501
State Bank of hucia 3000 3000 10 968,250 750,300
i) nevestinend jin Mutwal Ginds(Quuted & fully paid )
UTI fund capital growih schigme 1992 5000 - 5000 10 50,000 50,600
Franklin Indig Ultra Short Bond Fund Super IP Groth - | 22607862 E 2 SiQQQ.OI_)D
Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund - | 226098562 : - 5,000,000
TOTAL 28,915.225 37417394 |
1. 2).] Apgregate:amiount of quated investment ) 32,040.00 | 32,040.00
bi. Aggfmiarc markei v_ull?c ol quoted - ihvestment 97 1,4‘87; 124 M 753,800:60
€).]Agaregate anicunt of niguuléd investrneats 275893;,737,73 26,613,593.00




{Amoeunt in Rs.)

Note no-7
Long term Loans & Advances
o As At 31st As At 3st,

s e March,2019 | March2018 |
Unsecured & considered sood i i
Advance Tax including Wealth tax 1,286,608 |
Deposit with Others 6,033,339 623,405
Deposit with Govt. Authorities 254,617 354,617
Capital Advances 225,540,345 | | 76,440;600
Others 2,944,400 | 2,944,400
Credit Impainnent - i _ -
Total B 236,059,309 | 85941022

Capital advance includes dues from Pvt. Co. in which dne o¥ more directors is a director or

member
NIDHI DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD. - 216,023
NISSAN DEVELOPERS & PROPERTIES PVT. LTD., - 4,420,068
SUKHI VYAPAAR PVT. LTD. - 191,023
TOTAL - 4,827,114
Noteino-8 :
Inventories { Valued at lower of cost and net réalisable valae) o
7 Particulars b Ao bt ! 7\5 “M?iﬁ;t
’ March,2019 | Marel;2018 2
Stores & Spares ) &
‘Coustruetion WorK in Propress::- -
Alisha Bus Terminal 48,286,386 | 48285078 .
Durgapur Site 8,895,284 8,805,284
Kamnara Township, Burdwan 79,553,503 7@@?{)@04
tlungerford Street, Kolkata 36,269,311 i@ﬂ&‘)gg&?
Keshavganj, Burdwan 11,576,133 3,235,921
Poddar Court Building, Kolkata 615,990,948 | 645,983,328
Potato Bond 1,850,000 | k850,000
Textile Division 1,290,924 | 3
Ekdalia 448,895 -
Stock in Trade {held forsale) : o
Flat, Judges Road, Kolkata - 18,027,445
|Furniture pending transfer to tenant o~ L 2796610
Total 804,161,385 [ 820,144,437 |
Note : Stores & Spares written down - 622,001
current Investments. ey
= As At3lst | AsAt3ist
Particulars March,2019 ,_,Ni-*ixmlitzp'_t 8 !
i ‘ 10,976,910 16,000:000°
Unified Investment e e




(Amount in Rs,)

Note No-10
Trade Receivables:
Particulars Al At EiS "f&s_‘ MSI‘“ ;
Match,2019 March, 2018
Trade Receivable giimiil
Trade Recetvable (Considered Good) 10,520,808 |, 115,832,715
Trade Receivable (Considered Doubtfull) 8.162,681
18,683,489
Less : Allowance for doubtful debt (8,162,681) (6,976,922
Credit Impairment - P
B Total 10,520,808 | 8,855,793 |
Note No-11
Cash & cash Equivalents
e AsAt3lst | AsAt3ist
Particulars March,2019 P 2018
Balances with bariks in current aceouiit 7,189,794 5,690,545
Cheques / drafts in hand 30,000 X,639,640
Cash-in-Hand ) 90,664 134,832
Total 7,310,458 10,465,017 |
Note No-12
Otlrer Financial Assets .
Lo As At 31st AsAf3lst
, i o March2019 | Mayeh,2018
Loan to Others. = 1 1'4;?_6 §3,537
Interest Bearing Loan 110,850,833 -
Non-Interset Bearing Loan 2,571,596 -
Adavace
Adavnce to Others 7,006,303 1,480,617
Adavnce to Staff for salary (includes due from i ]
director Rs 1,20,000/-) 397,437 -
Advance to staff for expenses 139,971 -
Prepdid expenses 274,247 | -
Credit Impairment = PV
Total 121,240,386 115,566,154 |
Note No-13
Other Current Assefs e
- As At 31st Ay At3lst -
Periiculars March,2019 |  ‘March2018
‘Unsecnied & considered good 1%
Advance to Contractors 7,000,000 | 7,000,000
Restrucuring scheme pending implementation 32,803,444 | 32;8’()’39;_,-1‘#4‘
Advance against property 87,610,845 78,079,243
Advance against Burdwan Township Projects 29,399,490 29309490
Deposit With Govt. Authorities 167,023 | 635,933 |
Total 156,980,802 147,928,110
Note No-14
Current Tax Assets
Particulars - Batif 3."“ .'A-*Aﬁ-s‘?l 3
' March,2019 Wiareh,2018
Advance Tax including Wealth tax 5,9:-5‘?;,'5.6‘6 ¥ 21,’5@},1“# I
Total 5,952,566 20,568,141 |




INOIETRO-1D
Standalone Statemeof of Changes in Equity

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Fos PODDAR 25

AS AT 31.03.2019 1 . AS AT 31032018
PARTICULARS
NO. OF' Sl AMOUNT NO. OF 81 AMOUNT
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL.
Equity Share @
Ordipary Share of Rs 10/~ ¢ach 3.000,000 30,000,000 3.600,000 30,000,000
Preferance Share s
Prefercpce Shares 15 % cumulative rédcemablc
Rs. 100/~ each 18,000 1,800.000 18,000 1.800.060
Preference Shargs 11% cumulative redecmable
Rs. 100/~ cach 12,000 1,200,000 3,000 1i.200:600
Unclassified Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 20,000 2.000:000 20.000- 2,000080
3,050,000 35,000,000 3080000 | 35000000,
ISSUED & SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary Share of Rs. 10/- each 2,973,454 29,734,540 2973454 29ITBES40.
2.973.453 29,734,540 2073458 | 2973540
(A) Equity Share Capital
Parficulars ~ Amonut . 7
'S = o) : ' N
.mm.u.:__.__ Mwmm,mu Qv:&_ ) -, oo Forr PODDAR PROJECTS H\HU.
wm_sao »w&i 29& 2017 wmaww@ug
..ﬁm Anges in Equity Share € n%;a&._:_.né e
| ) ﬂweué BTRECTOR
fiare Capidal: 95:: the vear
— - ~XUN KUM,
|Balance as at 31° Mareh 2019 734,540 «~UN KUMAR PODDAR

GIEDTS 1T,

(Amount in Rs )

f::.an.. afl:Shanes held by

Share holder holding 5% stake in concerned, shdre

Name

Neo: of mrﬁnm.
licld

The Pench Valley Coal Co. Lid.

192800 (192800)

Aruo Kr Poddar 980397 (980397)
Ritika Poddar 216000 (216000)
Ayush E...m_%.:. 460616, (46061 6)
Rashmi Poddar | 200000.(260000)

~or PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.

../,_mao_yrfmzoﬁm
D 63994219

L ogmead

Gt s - Ty
RLILP R VL

Peanai

PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.

COMPANY SECRETARY




Note No-13 [Vilues in Rs.}

Particvlars owmzh,.nl..ﬂ,w.}::nxna to forming part of Balance Sheet as ao 31st _S»..m?\wcwm B

B iacitys Assucd .h,“mccmln_.,....cﬁ.w 2 Numhber oﬂmm@%mw.:mﬁ by
St Class of SHares of one L — ! Y L= ‘Sharc holder-holding 5% stake in concerned
Hiivas Capita) Fufly paid up, Partly paid up Total el vy
No. Value No. Vilue No. Value No. Value. Name No. M.“,»m_”m..um
Eqaity Shirkes CrY. Rs.10 3000000{ 3000000 2972454 29724540 1000 10000 2973454 | 29734540 | The Pench Valley Coal Co. | 192800
.. (P.Y) _ (3000000{ 0 (2972454) | (207245400 | (1000) | (10000 | (2973454) |(29734540) Ltd. (192800)
7 el e C.Y § = . x = x x x Arun Kr Poddar 980397
Less:call-in-arvear (dircctor) (PY). ® % (980397)
call-in-arrear CcY * " 7 . [ = o N s Ritika Puddar 216000
(Qther-than Director) (P:Y) (216000
. CY Ayush Poddar 460616
share forfeited > y :
; e (P.YY: ! ) * i . § ) ) (460616)
(i) | Paid up valuc of equity CcY s 5 % 2972454 29724540 i Rashmi Poddar 200000
shares (P.Y) (2972454) | 29724540y (200000)

Right, Preference repaybility

] ] transfer of shares are not subject o any restriction except where transferee is minor / lunatic. Board has rigfit to refiise any transfer of shares on which it has lien. Board
& restriction, if any, on

may not anthoriuse transfer of partly paid share to a transferee to whom board does not approve.

'equity shares
Preference Sharés 15% C.Y Rs.100 18000. | 1800000 NIL NTL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B (i) |cumulative redeemable" A" (P.Y) | (Rs.100) | (18000) [(1830000

Preferance Shares P

v:wmwg.nm Shares 11% CY Rs.100 12000 | 1200000 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
cumulative redeemable”B" (P.Y) | (Rs.100) | (12000) [(1200000

Unclassified Preference CY | Rs100 | 20000 |2000000| NI NIL NIL | ML NIL NIL

- ey | N |
Less:call-in-amrear (directo) | S x ® x * * *
ess:call-in-arr irector) *
: o (PY)
; = cy _ x x x
call-in-arrcar {Others) ®.Y) x x x
sharé forfeited %Mu X L % ‘ .
Paid up value of preference | C.Y . NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
; X % x
shares (R.Y) | y
(ii) | Right, Preference repaybility
& restriction, if any, on NA
equity shiares . .
R . I ¢y 2973454 | 29724540 1000 1000 | 2973454 | 29734540

ST S il @) * * ¥ [T(2972454) | (29724540) | (1000) | (1000) | (2973454) [(29734540)

CY: Current Year

For PODDAR PROJECTS [§fyrevios e PODDAR PROJECTS LTD. PODDAR FROJECIS LID:  Tar FOLDAR PROJECTS LD,

Footnote ; y
hy *  There has been no movement of shares during the year or in previous, year. e ; @Q C Aﬁlq,.\. DVIL .
€ ANY SE y AR . D ETOR e " .)Ml
CFO OMPANY SECRETARY RUN KUMAR PGDDAR L mbzﬁ OR
. DIN - 01598304 ; X1SHOR € GRAWA L

- Din' 01528 2)9




Note No-1¢

{B) Other Equity

{Amount ig Rs.)

sviluati Cagria Bviestme _ﬁﬁwwm:mga Gener: Retain Ol , Total Other
Resorve: _ atiifsed: Income

Balance as at 315t March, 2017 _ GAMSET | 897382993 3,000,000 1928500 | 7444300 [ 37053936 | 24K§S7,651 (1395:569)), 143,893,568
Profitfor the year 2007-18 26335537 194,248 265520785
Reé-investmentTor the yeit ¥ = BTN - - w_ | L
[Total compreheasive lngrease for the vear = - N " = § |
Balance asat 31st March, 2048 6,821,557 897:382,993 3,000:000 1:928.500 7,444,300 37,053,936 | 267,993,188 (201321)]  1.220423,153
Profit for the year 2018-19 48.869.787 1045416 49,915,202
Re-investmént for the year 5 3 - 2 . - -
Total comprehensive Incroase for the year - - - - s _ I -
Inter Reserve Transfer || & N _ _ (1,928.500) 1.928,500
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 0,821,587 897:382,993 3:000.000 - 7,444,300 _ 38,982,436, _ 316,862,974 (155,905)] 1.270.338.359

For PODDAR PRO.JECTS LTD.

For PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.

P«\SB

_ DIRECTOR
SN KUMEAR PODDAR
N 01598304

o

For PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.

DIRECTOR

wy\cpvrfw;opm JAYE NN
DNtody 98219

PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.

COMPANY SECRETARY




Note no-17
Long term Borrowings

(Amount in Rs,),

SL. : o , . As At 3ist AS A3 158
Nacure of Bosr ) F :
NO., ST Ol S Mareh,2019 Mivch 2048
SECURED :
0 |Long Term Lonn from Bank (KOTAK MAHINDRA) 214,505 1,144,064
- 4 |
Total 5l 14i47.064)

Footnote ;-
1 There is rio default in payment of principal loan or jnterest thereon,
2 No guarantee bond has been furnished by aity or against any [oan.

3 Repayable in 2 no. of cqual residual instalments of Rs. 80,844/ eachi (incl. interest) - Kotak Mahindra Bank
Repayable-in 15 no. of equal residual instalments of Rs. 68,948/~ each (incl. interest) - Kotak Mahindra Bank
4 Annual tate of interest on reducing balance method for- Federal Bank @ 9.68% & Kotak Mahindra Bank @ 8.00%

Note no-18
Other Long Term Liabilities

| . AsAt3ist | As At3ist
No Periolites March,2019 | Marels, 2018
Other Payables ' . AR
Tenancy Deposits 21,401,500 ‘ 055,646
TOTAL ) 21401,500] 16,055,645
Foot Note;
Tenancy Deposit are Refundable after expiry of Tenancy Agreement,
Note no-19
Long term provisions
| . AsAt3lst | ASATZIST |
No Particulares March.2019 MARCH, 2018
Leave encashment 96,245 67473
Income Tax 8,417,670 _
TOTAL. 8,513,915 67473




‘Note no-20
Trade Payables

(Amount in Rs.)

. S A At 31st As At31st
Purticulares March,2019 March 2018
Sundry Creditors for goods & Expenses 36,065,516 46 489,365
TOTAL: 36,065,516 | 46,489,365,
———|
Note no-21.
Other Current Liabiil’ti.es (Finangcial )
L As At31st ~ As At 315t
Particulare A :
articulares | March,2019 March 2018
Component of term loan repayable within a year ' 989,064 2,164,799
Other Liabilities 20,751,291 30,
Sccarity Deposit 202,906 I
TOTAL: 21,943,261 | 2271595
Note no-22
Other Cugl_:anlnLiubjliL’. (Non - Financial) =
' g As At 31st As At31st
Particulares March,2019 Marcl L&Q}l&' ]
Current Tax Liability (Provision) L= I
llncome Tax 4267318
TOTAL: ) - 14,267 318
Note no-23
Others : e
Boiiund As At 3ist -As At 3st
e March,2019 | March,2018
- — e e
Advance from customers 64,800,043 '91,2;0;&,6;5;@‘
Statutory Dues 2,231,831 4,155,997 ,
TOTAL: 67,031,874 | 96,064,651 |
Note no-24
Short term Provisions _ Ep——
F— AsAt3ist [ AsAf3lst
Bonus 62,982 5633&6.,
Provision against contingent liability (Read with note no. _ 5 ;
34(13)) - 26,120,000 26,120,000
TOTAL, 26,182,982 | 26,176,380




from O pektion: _
78\344,985

o)
i). Spack (Land and Building)
). Sa\e of bervwcs {Maintenance Charges) 5287332 |
). 48,94'4,00 t
iv). | 15,320,608
147 39(1.,‘)25
Other Income.t -
1) ividend income, LONg term Invesment (Other {han Tradey 149,041 61 r860
i) Profit onsale of Tixed Assets 5,874
iiiy |Misc. Receipts 54,105 | it 896»287
ey Dpterest Received 25,963,924 22851108
v) |Lisbitity Written Back 10,898,457 =
vi) [\yw.hgn in Cunenﬂnvesunem 882,479 1&11551
Vn) Pmrr onbale of Land - 926,655
2,400 3870
37,956,280 | s |

Dorgapur Project
Alisha Bus Terminal, Burdwan
rownship. Burdwan

Hungerford Street, Kolkatd
Keshavgand,: Burdwan

Fiat at Judges Court’ Road, Kotkata
Land- & Building (Poddar Court)
Potato Bond

P o Stock

Textile Division

crease in il mvcntencs’

__——-—-—

easel() )




Particulares

fishy

veSSCTb\VhsltTp - gurdwan)

505.840.
16327
100,458

Window Pan¢

Stone chip

Wood/ Plywood 663,242
1,250,000, |
2796610

'|

Potato Bond

®)

Furniture Stock

®)

(&) Construciion work in pro



//"/’lmum inRs.).

Note No-2t E - =

| Sr No] Parficubtees Details -mﬂlmm-l
s

Buililing Deyelopment Expeiises

jraLclion \Work i Progress (Alisha Bas fermingt)

Repars.& maintenace A ) .
rcanster Sfom Capital WI (Alishe) 20:234,746

roEress 1 ow nsirign,

] Kfquslruuion worlein Buydwan)

Building Expenses 1288
275.524
N 237
95430

162.627
735272
1696
274662
25.561

power & Fuel
River Clearing

Raver embarkmient

paclan hire charges
Advertisement & publicity
Ponslion

Electrical Equipment
B Opérator's Charges:
{avout Expenses

180.000

(83,6001

Legal Expenses
rofessional Service Charsos: 385.000 410,176
7087

5B C {Expenses) 5
TAIEIS:

ol in rogress 11

Construction W
Allowarice’
D.GSet
Electricity Charges
Ex-gratia

Labour Charges

| Misc. Expenses

General Repelr & Main
sweeper charges
Security Serviee Charees 188,444, 1,916,386 ¢
Consiruelion W
Profisgsiann Service: {05,190 4980
Electricity Charges 129,332 WTAT3 !
General Repair & Main. - §,000! 5
Labour Charges 7,888,400 7a%,350" F
Land Deyelopment EXp. - 9054 s

{egal Chiarges 131000
Mise Expenses 2400,

piDC Ic@i?
‘Plan Sention Fees - |~80’,15ji§=

Security Service charges 182,491 23,895

14,000 -

Allowances:
Printing & Stationery
Stamp Duty

8,340,212 = ﬁu_‘ LIS

1l & Building (B
Advcrtiscmp:jb&1!;|b1fdil(y
Electrical Expenses
Lgbour Charges

Misc. Expenses

Misc. Purchase

Plumbing & Sanitation
Repair & Main

FLAT AD - JUDGES
Laboyr Charges:

Construction wiorl iyt
property Tux

GRAND TOTAL




Note No-22 N

5o |

Particalares

Einplovees' Beaefit Expenses.
Sataries . Wages & Bonus
Contribution 10 p.EF..and Other Funds

Staff W e\fare Expenses
-contribution 10 ESL

Tnterest.expenses
Bank ¢harges

- - Total

ther Expenses

1 |Auditors tepuneration (including tax audit fee)
2 |Rent (Lease)

3 |General Repairs and Maintenance
4 [Rates & Tax

5 IMiscellaneous expenses

6 |Charity & Donation

7 |Professional Charges

8 |Sundry Balance written Off

9 |Bid Advance Written Off
10|General Charges

u Travelling Expenscs

12 Expenses. ®B.T)

13 |{nterest o0 ‘[enancy Deposit
14 |Provision for bad debt

15| Bad Debt white Off

16 |Busingss. Promotion Expenses
17|Electric Charges Paid
18!Motor Car Malatenance

19 |Expenses {Textilo)
201Custom Duty

21 |Freight

22 |instaltation Fees

iamount in RS.

5,552,242

300829

129,304
1,006,973 2002:779"
37,905 | 32350
1,20@&00

924000.
293‘3359

92,000
464,564

7,003,793 3 117679
9,795,320 | 10 306}955

4,194,641
o 195:000
533,440
578, JSS

3,582,322 |

3,383,275
9.911,413
4,127,027

962,429
3,315,406
3,899,945
1,219,802
{185,759

523,380°
2,615,691
12,008,683
67%566“

1,003.718
1,451,421

158,000
52,090




Note no-32

Deffered Tax

A |Liability
Depericiation
Equity Inv estment

Sub-Total(A)

B |Assets
Leave Salary
Gratuity

Sub-Total(B)
¢ [Net Deffered Tax Liability

D |Charge to P/L AC
Charge to OCL

Br,cak‘-‘m; of Changes
Particulares
Depericiation
Gratuity
Equity Investinent

Leave Salary
TOTAL

Note ﬁ0s33

Other Conmy rehensive Income

[nvestments

Less Deferred Tax @ 26%

ik @ 26%

Accreatior_x/(Deplebion) on Investment (Assets)

Excess of Planned assets towards Gratuity OVer obligation

Amount in Rs.

2018’-‘[9 29174!8,
7.086,400.53 1.455,385.00
189,436.12
8375 856.65 T455,385.00
2,127.82
7212782 :
e ‘ B =T
8,353,708.83 | 1455,385.00
6,531,015.53 1,455,383.00
167.308.30

31.03.2019

7,986,400.53 6,531,015.53
22,127.82 22,127.82
389,436.12 389,436.12

e (LB

J455.385.00

5397 96447 604257941

1,455,385.00

Q26/737)
{12u674)

342568
34257



PODDAR PROJECTS LIMITED
) (Amounfin Rs.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2019 )
Note No-34 ]
SIGNIFICANT NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
1 | (a) |Reconcilation of fncome “Tax 1iabilitiy between books records & departmental records is pending for determination of liability / adjostment ifany
incidental / contingent / excess calling for write back in this regards.
{b) |Centingent Liability not provided for :
: ] Particulares ; _ © 2018419 2017-18 i
Capital Commitment (not provided for) 223,540,345.20 176,410,600.00
2 | a |The Textile Unit of the Company has been under suspension of work/Lock out siice 20th Junel997 / 4th July1997 and accordingly the following
|documents/ records could not be made available to auditor's for verification :
(i) Stock Records
(i1) Fixed Assefs Records
| b |Details of demand raised by Caleutta Port Trust on account of enhancement of rent upto Financial Year 2013-14 disputed by the company for
Rs.4,80,00,000/- are not available for the purpose of certain of provision under Ind AS 37.
¢ |in absence of defails available for l¢ase property at Pune , highlighting non-accountal of Ind AS, the same could not be given in the accounts.
3 . Anditor's Reimuneration : . For the Year .aﬁﬁ._m., 31st Marely, For m:o Year n:&& 31st March,
_ . J 2019 L. 2018 )
Audit Fees:~ 70,000 70,000
Tax Audit Fees 22,000 | e ) - quebm !
92,000 92,000,
4] a ,,Zo indication of impairment exist within the meaning of Para-5 to 13 of IND AS- 36 .
b |Security Deposit
The details regarding the tenure of security deposit for the tenency are not ascertainable In lieu of the same discounting of the said security depos m ¥
has been made on the assumption that each tenancy arrangement under tenancy deposit is expirable after 5 years froin the transition point to IND (3]
AS i.e. from 01-04-2016 . 54




(a) {Particulars on Defined Benefit Plan in tevms of IND AS -19 :- (Amount in Rs.)
(1) |[Expenses Recognised in Profit & Loss Account :-
* 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 ]
Particulares Gratuity Leave Salary Gratuity  |Leave Salary
Cufrent Service Cost 34,868 9,930 28,136 17.679
Interest Expenses on D B O 31,854 4,993 52.292 4,474
Return on Planned Assets {60.137) (57.049)
Acturial Gains 85,107 13,849 (342,569) (13,938
TOTAL 91,692 28,772 Gerewlen . 8215
(IT) |Change in Obligation in the vear ended 31.03.2019 :
s i _ '31.03:.2019 S 31.03:2018 =
st i g R R Gratuity __ [beavcSalary | |Gratuity _ |Leave Salary
R -
1 {Present Value of Defined benefit Obligation at the beginning (430,466) 67,473 (692,607) 59,258 |
” 2 |Employer Service Cost 34,868 9,930 28,136 17.679
3 [Interest Cost 31,854 4,993 52,292 | 4,474 |
4 [Curtailment Cost
§ |Settlement Cost
6 {Plan Amendments ,
7 |Acquisitions _
8 |Actuarial Gains/ Losses 85,107 13,849 (342:569) (13:938)
9 |Benefit Payments - - - -
10 |Present Vialue of Defined benefit Obligation at the end of the (582,295) 96245 (430.,46b) 671473
(IID{Change in Planned Assets in the vear ended 31.03.2019
: e o e 31.03:2019 i - ¥ 31.03.2018 S
B Zo.« . : DReIEnen. . [Gramity . [UeaveSalary | |Gramuity  _ |LeaveSalary
1 [PFair Value of Planned Assets at the beginning of the year 812,660 - 785,614 >
2 |Expected Return of Asset 60,137 - : 57,049
3 |Actoal Company Contribution - - -
4 |Benefit Payments - - : =
5 |Acturial Gain/ (Loss) - - -
6 |Appreciation/ Depreciation of Plan Assets - 5 =
7 |Fair Value of Planned Assets at the end of the year 872,797 | - 812,660 -




{Amountin Rs.]

(TV)|Obligation as on 31.03.2019 vis -a-vis Planned Assets
g J ot i B _ 31.03.2019 P& Fave 31.03.2018
St No. ) : M—Wowmﬁw:o: [Grafiiity  |Leave Salayy Gratuify Leave Salary
1 |Obligation (582.295) 96,245 (430,466) 67,473
2 [Planned Assets 872,797 - 812.660 4|
shortfall / ( Excess Payments) - eredit accounted for in Baldance
Sheet) 296,502)| 96,245 (382,194) 67,473
, TP 31.03,2019 el 31.03.2018 i
a AT o Gratuity | Leave Salary Gratuity [Ceave Salary |
(V) [Nuniber of Employees 6 6 6 6
(VI)| Total Monthly Salaries (Ks.) 71,483 71,483 58,383 58,383
(VII]Avg. Monthly Salary per Employee. (Rs.) 11914] 11914( | 9731 g7l
(VIT[|Average Past Services 21.33 18.67 18.88 18:67
(IX)|Average Puture Services 6.8 9.05 9.05 9.05
(X) |Total Number of Leaves 0 0 0. 0l
(XI)| Average age at Valuation Dafte 50.44 49,314 49.34 49.314
(XHI]Normal Retirement Age 58 wg‘ ,ﬂ
(X11|Discount Rafe 7.4% 7% :
(XI\Investment (per Annum) 5% W 5%
(XV|Nature of Planngd Assets LIC Policy M LIC Policy| s
6 Break-up of Construction Work-in-Progress:-
- [BLNd. = PARTICULARS _ a i AT 31.03.2019 | AT 31:03.2018
1 |Construction Work in Progress(Durgapitr) _ 8,895,284 8,895,284
2 |Coostruction Werk in Progress(Township,Burdwan) 78,218,187 76,990,204 |
3 |Construction Work in Progress(Hungerford Street.Kolkata) 36,269,311 36,080,867
4 |Construction Work in Progress(Poddar Court ) 615,990,948 645,983,328
4 {Construction Work in Progress(Alisha Bus Terminal) 48,286,386 48,285,078
5 |Construction Work in Progress(Keshavganj,Burdwan) 11,576,133 | 3,235,921
6 |Construction Work in Progress(Textile) 1,290,924 ; -
7 |Construction Work in Progress(Ek Dalia) 448,895.00 | g Pl
TOTAL A 800,976,069 | - 819,470,682




Aot Re ¥

[ 7 [information Pursuant (o IND

AS - 24 o Rebaced Pacty Transaetivn -

HEENY REPATD ot - 1
_ NATAIREOF RELATED OPENING cﬁwﬂhwwi pHLNC I REARIRATIO 2“%%”4 Lo mhm,mﬂm
PARTICULARS | NAMEOF RELATED FARTY FAREX BALANCE YEAR YEAR. AMD : - &
Arun Poddar Direcior
Remmunertion’ AjitJain Compimy Secreatary _ 759,000
Remuncration ). K Aganwal Dircctor 1,700.004
Remuneration Sanika Jain, CFO 280.000
Caphal Allvance [Amalgamated Fuaels Lid | Divector biing Member 0
Apzee Investment & Leasing
Capital Advanes  {Ltd. Dircetor being Ml 1 (0,000 110,001 -
Capital Advancz__[Balaji Meial & Sponge pvtltd | Dirctlor bising Member = ) -
Carital Advance | Bhavnani Developers Pyt Lid Director being Mémber 1118389 | 1,218,389 100,000
Capital Advance  [Ceres Begja Rescarch Pvt Ltd  |Director being Meinter -
Capital Advance  {Chitralekha Eniclave Pvt. Tad.  |Significant Influcnce 70,000 670,000
Capitd) Advance _{Delight Vinimay Pvt. Lid. IcCD 1200000 730000 wm.o..oao
‘Dharamvir Merchandise Pvi
Capital Advance  |Ltd. Significon Influence x -
Gapital Advance _{Dheeraj Promoters Significant Influesce 19.000 19,006,
Enterprising Housing
Capital Advauce” |Development Corporation Itd. | Director being Membr 50.000 50,000.
Capital Advarice  |Girukefpa Vinimay Pvt. Ltd.  hcw 1449425 193,500 101250 1,357,175
Capital-Advance. | Flimafi Vinimay Pvt, Ltd Direcior beivg Member 1,628,143 87.120 126,932 1,667,955
Capital Advance  {Kedha Merchandise Py, Lid. | Director beingr Member 46357532 | 3,786,000 4.0135.808. 46,587,340
Capital Advance |Madan Theaters Lid Sigvificant fnfluence 691,023 ] 691.023.
Capital Advance  |[Nidhi Developers Pvt. Ltd. Director being: Member 216,023 150.00D. 366,023
Capiis) Advance. [Lid. Stenificany Influence 4,420,068 8.677.084 | 8.998.156 4,741,140
Nissan Education Services Pvt
Capitat Advance. |Ltd i Significant Infucnce 191,023 191,023
Capital Advance | Pashupati Dealers Pyvt. Ltd, [CD 408997 30,647 439,644
Capital Advance |Poddar Leasing & Holding Ltd | Direcror being Member 1.191.023 375,000 230,000 1.286.023
Capital. Advance _|Pragati Commirade Pvt Ltd IcD 797,243 797245
Capilal Advance.[Prectam Enclave Pvt Lid 1ICB 370023 3711023 E
Capilat Advance | Rainbow Merchants Pvi, 144, |Significant Influence, 841,023 50000 | . 791,023
Capitil Advauce | Risewyell Markebiog, Pyt Lid.. LG 1.349.927 2160606 97200 1231127
Capitef Advance  |Shrishii merchandise Pvt Ltd | Significant Inilyence =
South East Asia Communication
Cupital Advance[Network Sigriificant inflience 1,293,333 111753, 1,405,086
Capital Advance, |Star Point Tradelink Pvt, Lid. ICD 763,006 51954 _ 814,960,
Capitsl Advance | Style Vyapaar Pvt Lid Director being Member 418.421 93421 38.105 363:105
[Capital Advancs | Sudhanshu Developers Pvi Ltd _|Significant Influence :
Cupitel Advance |Sukhi Vyapaar Pyvi. Ltd. Significant Tnfluence 191.023 191,023 30,000 30,000
Capital Advance |Swagat Commercial Pyt Ltd. 1CD 1.095:000 10,000 1:105,000
Capital Advance. | Tradelink Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 1CD 194,023 191,023 56.000 50000
Cipital Advames. | Viital Commergeial Py Ltd. 1CD 198,023 {08,025 | 90,000
Capital Advaice | Ttammel Commercial Pwvi. Lad. 1D 14,119,575 1,087 987 15 205563




tAgmoun) in By

8 |Information pursuau! to IND AS - 17 for Operating Latses ;- -
Leasehald ront about 2660 sq. 1. dat 36B. Shakespeare Sarani. Kolkata-700 071 feased by Halwasia Trist, (or rent of Rs. 9.004/- per month.
Amonngs charged to Profit & Loss Account:
Particitlares 2018-19 - 2017-18
During the vear 179,086 115248
Payuble in next | year 119,086 115,248
Payable between | (o 3 years 476,344 460,992
Payvable after § yeirs . 11,086 Ese 115248
9 _.:un._om:g Pursuantto IND AS 33 :-
Earning Per Share before consideration of Extraardingry ftems -
2018-19 20172018, =
Profit./ (Less) afler tax & ¢xtra ordinary items 49915202 | 26,541,781
Profit / (Loss) after tax & extra ordinary items 49915202 [ L 26,541,781
No. cmw Shares: 2,973,454 '
EPS { Rs) 16.79 -
10 |Disclosore Parsuant o IND AS 12 :-
SL. PARTICULARS 2018-2019 2017:2018
(A) Deferred Tax Asscts i- _
Gratuity 22,128 i
Leave . X —
22,128 o~ = =
(B)  |Deferced Tax Linbitiey s . o
Equity lnvestment 389,456
Depreciation 7986401 e T
8375831 s
(<) Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (A-B) (8.353,709)
D) Tncrease in Deferred Tax Liability 6,531,016 ‘ 7305252
(E) Debited 1o P/L Account 6,531,016 o - TER305252




11 Parties 1o Current & Non-cirrent Assets & Liabilifies are pending confirmations. {(Amount'in Rs )

2 |Agreements pertaining to certain frrties from whom advances has been tdken are pending exceation.

13 [Information pursuant to IND AS 37 :»
“The company is inl negotiation with Kolkazt Por trust for setilement SF rental arrangentents ageinst which RS. 4.80.00.000 upproximately being demanded by relevant authiority iowasds rentil
‘due from Financial Year 20040510 2013204 which has beet shown as.Contingent Lisbility 2n amount of Rs. 2.61,20,000 is.alresdy accounted for s provision in the books,

Due 1o dispute with Kolkata Port Trust cempany’s montlity pavment of rent by cheque.contimue toremain unencashed for non présentation of saue to the bark by KPT which dgansalke Ra
29,54, 736/~ (P.Y, Rs. 26,13.978/) & thus has been included in.other liability i nowna in

Conirgent tiability riot provided on secatot of demand raised by Income Tax auibority fhr -

AY Amount

2007-08 481,088

200840 1,683.255

201112 227,900

20713-14 71.900

20%5-16 3,049:¢40

2018-17 1,070,570

2018-18 92,820 6,586973

14 [Tuformation pursiasnt to Scction 186(4) of Companies Act . 2013,

(A) LOANS GIVEN :-
- Rate of
Name of Borrowers Amount of Loan Interest | Purpose of Loan
Bee Dee Investment 251 408 0 | To micct need based fund refuirement
A P Fashion (P} Ltd. 4035414 0 | To meer need based fund requirement,
Everest Infra Energy’ Linmited 27,500,000 0 | To meet necd based tund réquirement
Jia Auto Sales Pvt. Lid. 7,500,000 0 | To mect need based fund requirement
Riddhi Profolio. Pvt Litd 20,000,000 0 | To meet nped based fund requiremént
Gemini Dealcomm Pyt Ltd 50,139,501 0 | To meet need based fund requirement
Grieenfield Vyapar Pyt L1d 30,456,971 0 | Fo meet need based fund requirement
Himali Futiristic Communicatio 39,133,151 | 0 | To meet need based {und requirement
Posja Finelease Ltd. 10,000,000 0 | To mect need based fund requirement
United Masterbatches Pyt. Ltd, 2.500:000 0 | To meet need based furid requirement
Jagannath Heights Pvi. Lid. 6,717,682 0 | To meerneed based fund reguirement
‘Gurukripa Vinimay Pyt Ltd 1,357,175 6 | Tomeet peed based fund sequirement,
Himali Vinimay, Pvt Ltd },667.955 0 | T6 mect need based fund reguireraem
Kedha Merchantile Pvt Ltd 46,587,340 0 | To meetneed based find requirement:
Pashupati Dealers Pvt Lid 439,644 0 | To meet nced based find requirement
Risewell Marketing Pvi Led. 1,231,127 0 | To mieetneed based fund requiirement
17 Soiith EastAsia Communication 1,405,086 0 | To meet need based fund requirerhent
18 Starpoint Tradelink Pvi Lid , §14,960 0 | To meet need based fund requirement
19 Style Vyapaar PvtTotd 363,105 0 | To ineet need based fund requirement
20 Trammel Comtirereial Pyt Lid. 15,207,562 0 | To-meet need based fund reqoirement
21 R.P. Knitpro (India) Pvt Ltd 3.841.379 0 { To mett need based fund nequirement
22 8.P.Poddar Hospital:& Medical | 1,517,063, 0 | To meet need based fund requirement
GROSS TOTAL 272,666.525




(B) INVESTME

Amount i B

Naine of Javestee

“ature of Investmenit Made

Amount of Taviestnient made

Amount of Lvestmesid

niade
] Podda? Services Lad. Eauity Share (200 sk (@ Ry, Tas) 2,000 2,000
2 Busy Properties [iid e Share (125 $h. 40 Rx, 1004) 2,781,250 2,781,250
3 Aunalgamated Fuets 1.4d Bquity Share. (35400 sh. 20 Rs. 10/-) 358;000 358,000
4 TEnterprising House Develppmen p| Bquity Share (30060 sh. gi Rs. 10/<) 150,000 150,000,
& Tivoll Park Apartmenis Pyi. (4@ | Equity Share (99220 sh. @ Rs. 100/-) 22663500 22,663,500
[ Gurukripa vynpazer pvriid Equity Share (1100 sh. @ Rs. 10/ 11,000 11,000
z Risewell Marketing Pv Lxd gty Share {1600 sh. @ Rs. 14 1,600 1,600
8 Delight Vinimay pys itd Equity Share (1600 sh. @ Rs. 10/-) 16,000 16,000
Yy Vital Commercial pvihd Equity Share (1900 sh. /@ Rs. 107-) 77.900 77900
10 Swagnt cofmercial pyt ltd Equity Share (§900 sh. @ Rs. 102 57.000 57,000
11 Tradelinks Vinimay Pvt itd Equity Sharer(1300.slt. @'Rs. 100 41,600 41,600,
12 Pashupati deafers pva itd Equity Share.(1900:sh. @ Rs. 10/) 49,4001, 49,400,
13 Preétam enclave pvt Itd Bquity. Share (1900.sh. 4@ Rs. 10/+) 87.400 STA00.
14 Style vyapaas pvt Htd Exquity. Share (1600 sh. @ R$. 10/) 16,000 16,000/
1§ Starpoint tradelinks vt id Equity Share (1100 sh. @ Rs. 10/+) 11,000 1150001
16 Pragati Commtrade pyt Iid Equity Sharg (1900 sh, @Rs. (0F) 53,200 53,200
17 Stavnor & Co. Lad Taquity Shase (36782-sh. @ Rs. 10£) 313,383 315383
18 Nissan Educational services;pvt ftd| Tquity Sharg (I700'sh. @ Rs. 10/-) 17.000 17,000
19 Hope Housing Development Corpaf Equity Share (2250 sh. @ Rs. 10/-) 22,500 22:500
20 poddur Leasing & Holding Ltd. | Equity Share (9800 sh. @ Rs. 10/2) 91,100 91,100!
21 Dharamyir Merchandise Pyt Ltd. | Equity Share (2400 sh, @ Rs. 107-) 24,000 241000,
22 Nissan Developers & Propertics Py| Equity Share (9500 sh. @ Rs. 10/-) 95,000 | 95,000
23 B.P-Poddar Hospits) & Medical Re} Equity Share (840500 sh. @ Rs. 10/} 5,004,000 ; 5094000,
24 Surbki Properties Pt L1d, Equity Share (1900 sh. @'Rs. 10/-) 19,000 19.000
25 Boss Profiles Lid. Equity Share (600000 sh. @-Rs. 10/-) 6,000,000 6,000,000
26 Poddar Heritage Litd - 13:5% pref§ Prel’ Sh. (700 sh @Rs. 100/-) 70,000, 701000
fnoati Busine: imited - 9% i o

’r wmmhmd“ﬂ% wﬁ_ﬁn 9% | et St (11000 h @ Rs. 100%) 1,106,000 . 110600
28 Apeciay-Iodia Ltd. Equity Share (200 sh. @ Rs. 105) 1,000 1,000
29 Urtited Spirit Ltd. Equity Share (4 sh. @ Rs. 10/) ] S1
30 State Bank of India Equity Share (3000 sh. @ Re. 10/-) 30,000 ; 30,000
Total Amgimt '39.253.884) 39,253.884

footaote "4" of Schedule - 11 of Companics Act2013

Rased on benchmark foridentification of componerits in wms of specilied percentege-ofvalue

of written down value:of-assets, no, 3.aﬁczm%;sw.&caa%nun&% depreciable in-application of




)
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Recent accountiag pronofneements enfailing insertion? wodification.of new fexisting siceounting standards.
Ind AS 116, Lease Accounting

Definition of lease ( Fmancidl aad opcrating ) has undergony cliange pursuant w mandation of new satandard regarding Lhe eariier one under Ind AS 17 (dropped) tor relevant accounting
reatment .

1. Ind A% 12, Incore taxes— on apptication af appendix Con uncertainty over Income [ax tredtrments.

2.7nd AS 23, Borrowling costs ~ Layingdova speci(ic borowing cost 1o be considered for capitlisation.

3. Ind AS (09, Financinl instruments = on treatmient of prépayment featuros with Negative Compensztion.

4. 1hd AS 19, Employed benefits - Dealing witit Plan Amendment. Cunatfment ar Serlentent pariaining 1o defined lsenefil plan.

‘The Company i§ in the process of cvalugting the impact of such amehdments.

New -Standards/Amendments applicd during the year in respect of Company's Financial Statements :

On 28th March, 2018, the Ministry 6f Corporate Affiirs (MCA) has notified {nd AS 115 — Revenue {rom Coritracts with Customers zind cenain amendinentde esisting [od AS. These

arhendments shall be appliczble to the company front april. 201%

Ind AS 115- Revenue from contracts with Customers (fiew)-1nd AS 115 supersedes Ind AS 11, Construction Contracts and Ind AS, 18, Revenue Ind AS ! 15 requires an entity to,report
information regarding nature, amount, Uming and uneertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracl with customers. The principle of Ind AS 1 15 is that anentity should recognise
révenye that demonstrates: the transtér of promised goods and services to'the customers 21 an amount that reflests the considecation to which the eitity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those grods and services.

‘Trid As 12 — lacome Taxes (aniendeit) - consideration of Testrictive tax laws in'sources of tanable profit and corresponding reversal of deductible temparary differences.

tid AS 21 — The Blfects of Chariges in Foreign Etchange Rates (amended) — On application of newly inserted appendix —B pertaining to Toreigh eurrency in cormection 6f non menetary
axsersfiabilitics. The impact of the above new standards/amendments did ngt have material impact on the financial starements

adoption of the standard did not haye:any material impact on the financial statemcats of the Company

Revenue from contracts with Customers disaggregated based on primasy mgwn»‘.wwn"‘._ markets . major products, type of sales and types of customers :
(Amount {n Rs.}

Tipe of Goods and Scrvices For the period cuded 31st March 2019 For the period ended 31st Mareh,2018
Rea! Estate 78,344,985 53,390,608

Rent 48,944 00) 39,331,721
Maintenece 5287332 | 4,387,699
Others 53,276,887 | 34568247
‘Total 145,853,205 131,878,274

W Geographical Region For the period ended 31st Mirch,2019 For the period coded 31st March, 2618

india 185.853,20% 131,378,274
Tofal 185.833,205 131,878,274

Effective April 2018, the Compary has adopted Ind as 115 — Revenoe from Contracts with Customers osing the cumulative effett method and the comparative information is not Testated. The:
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(Amount in Rs )

Type of Siles For the perind enied 31t Mareh, 2019 For the period eaded 315t Maich 2018
Real Estate 74,344 985 3,300 608
Sale OF Services 54.23) 35% 43019420
Others: 53976:887 34,568,247

Total 185,853,265 131,878,27

Typie of Customers I For the period ended 31st Ma rch, 2049 “For {lse. period ended 315t Ma vch,2018
Non- Goverpment 185 853,203 i 131,878,274
Total 185,853,205 T31.875.274

Recanciliation of Revenue Tram Sale with Contract price.

For tlre period ended 31 st Mar¢h,2019 ‘For the porivd ended 315t March,2018
Contract Price:(Nct of Retarn ) §87.176.822 123,942,072
Less: Provision for Breakage 1,323,617 2,063,798
Revenie from Szle 185,853,205 131,878,274 |

The notes are.an integral part of the fimacial stalements.

Previous fighure have-been reclassified/ regrouped to confirm to theycuoent year presentatation/classification.

For PODDAR PROJECTS LTD.
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NOTES: FORMING PARTOF THEFINANCIAL STATEMENIS

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORVIATION
Poddar Projects Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incarporated in 1963 and
domiciled in India and has its listing on the Calcatta Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India. The Company belongs to a renowned industrial house of Kolkata, the "Poddar
Group": The registered office of the Company is situated in Kolkata. The Company's principal
business is real estate, renting of building etc.

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION & PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT
2.1. Statemeut of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
("Ind AS") as prescribed by Ministry of Corparate Affairs pursvant to Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended). other relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted i India. »
An explanation of how the transition to Tnd AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Compaity is previded in Noie No, 41, Certain of the
Campany's Ind-AS accounting policies used in the opening Balance Sheet differed from its Indian
GAAP policies applied as at 31st March, 2016 and accordingly the adjustments were made to
restate the opening balances as per Ind-AS. The resulting adjustment arising from events and
transactions before the. date of transition to Ind-AS were recognized ditectly through retained
carnings 4s at lst April, 2016 as tequired by Ind- AS 101. The financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2018 has been approved by the Board of Directars in their meeting
held on 29th May 2018.
2.2. Basis of Mcasurement
The Company maintains accounts .on accrual basis following the historieal cost convention, except for
folloyings:
. Cerfain Financial Assets and Liabilities is measured at Fair value/ Amartized cost (refer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
«  Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair value;

«  Defined Benefit Plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

2.3. Functional and Reporting Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is thie functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic enviroument in which the Company
operates,

2.4 Usé of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires judgments, estimates
and assumptions to be made that affect the reparted amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of




contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates

are recogiized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

2.5. Presentation of Financial Statements: The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and
Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule 111 (Revised) to the.
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements af Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash flows". The disclosure requirements with
respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the
Schedule 111 to the Act, and various stipulations of Ind AS or any other act are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be
disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

2.6, Operating Cycle for current and non-current elassification: All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non-current depending on the Company's normal operating cycle and
other griteria set out in the Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1.The Company
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current
classilication of assets and liabilities.

Ap asset is classified as current when it is:

« Expected to be realized or intgnded to sold or conswmed in normal operating cycle;
» Held primarily for the purpaese of trading;

» Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting _p_erfiod.

All the other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

* [t is expeeted to be settled in normal operating eycle;

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively,

2.7. Measurcment of Fair Values: A number of the Company's accounting policies and
disclosures requive the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be reoeived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability 10 an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair




value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagcous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The faii
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 'market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest, A fair value measuremeni of a noo-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability te generate economie benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market, participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use af unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair
value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

» Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or Hability, either directly or indirectly; and » Level 3: laputs which are unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets
& liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided by the management of the company
considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and maintenance of professional standatds.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A summary of the significant aecounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
the periods presented in the finaircial statements.

3.1, INVENTORIES: Inventories including stores.and spares are valued at the lower of cost and
net realizable value (NRV), cost being recognized on FIFO basis, building field for trading is
recognized at cosi plus value added there or further maintenance thereon, Building constructed
is valued or input cost (including material and cost thereon, construction in progress is valued at
material/other input plus overhead up to the stage of construction.)

3.2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits * with an original maturity of three
months or less. which are subject to an insignificaut risk of change in valwe. For the purpose of
the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, term deposits and
other short-term Iighly liquid investments, net of bank overdrafts/cash credit as they are




considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. Bank overdrafts/cash credits are
shown within short term borrawings in the Balance sheet.

3.3, INCOME TAX: The inceme tax expense or ¢redit for the period is the tax payable on the
curtept periad's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temperary differences
and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit & loss,
except lo the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income ot directly
attributable to other equity. In these cases, the tax is also recognized in other gomprehensive
income or in statement of change in other equity, respectively. Tax on rental income is assessed
on the basis laid down for income from liouse properties under Income Tax Act, 1961.

3.3.1. Curvent Tax: Curent tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the end of the
repetting period.

3.3.2. Deferved Pax

« Deferred Tax assets and liabilities is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

« Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred tax is also vecoguized for carry forward of unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

. Deferved tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax oredits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

+ The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

The Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or that

entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it

becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized
either in other comprehensive income or in statement of change in equity. Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

« Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable riglit to set off
current tax assels against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
{he same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.




* No deferved tax is recognized of income from house pro petties.
3.4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

3.4.1. Tangible Assets

3.4.1.1. Recognition and Measurement:

* Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or
services, of for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet under cost m.odﬁl i.e.,
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), except for
freehold land which are carried at historical cost.

= Cost of au item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts
and vebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its werking condition and
location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Such costs include borrowing cost if
recognition criteria are met.

* If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are aceounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and egoipment.

* Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.4.1.2. Subsequent Measurement:

* Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that
future gconomic benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost
of the itemt can be measured reliab ly. The carrying amount of any compenent accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

» Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Qverhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the
item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Any Unamortized part of the previously recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.4.1.3. Depreciation and Amortization:

» Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on Straight Line Method, in terins of
life span of assels prescribed in Scehedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 or as reassessed by the
Company based on the technical evaluation.

+ In case the cost of part of tangible asset is significant to the total cost of the assets and useful
life of that part is different from the remaining useful life of the asset, depreciation has been
provided on straight line method based on internal assessment and independent technical
evaluation carried out by external valuers, which the management believes that the useful lives
of the component best represent the period over which it expects to use those components.




* Depreciation on additions (disposals) duting the year is provided on a pro-rata basis depending
on the usage period of assets since/ up to the date of installation / disposal.

* Depreciation on assets built on leasehold land, which is transferrable to the léssor on expiry of
lease period, is amortized over the period of lease.

* Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
¢nd and adjusted if appropriate.

3.4.1.4. Dispusal of Assets: An item of property, plaut and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when ne future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use¢ of the
asset. Any gain or loss arjsing on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between fef disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5. LEASES

3.5.1. Determining whether an arrangemerit contains a lease: The determination of whether
ah arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
ingeption of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

3.5.2. Company as lessor

* Finance Lease Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified arid accounted for as finance
lease. Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the finance income and capital repayment
based on the implicit rate of retury. Contingent vents are recognized as revenne in the period in
which they are earned.

* Operating Lease Leases in which the Compaty does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental incoms from operating
leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where
scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected Inflationary costs.

3.5.3. Company as lessee

* Finance Lease: Tinance Leases, which gffectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the
fait value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term
and disclosed as leased assets, Lease Payments under such leases are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance
charges are charged directly to the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal
charges and other initial direct costs are capitalized. If there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capitalized leased assets are
depreciated uver the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.




* Operating Leasc: Assets acquired on leases where 2 significant portion of risk and reward is
retained by the lesser are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged (0 statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where scheduled increase in
rent compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

3.6. REVENUE RECOGNITION: Sales is recognized in the accounts on passing of property in
goouds whieh includes amount recovered towards taxes. Income from services is recognized as
rendering services/ use of company’s assets by third parties.

3.6.1. All income and expenditure are generally recognized on acerudl basis,

3.6.2, Rental Income: Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease unless the paymenis are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the company’s expected inflationary cost inereases.
3.6.3. Other Income:

3.6.3.1, Interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT), interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrament or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

3.6.3.2, Dividend Income: Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to
receive the same is established,

3.6.3.3. Other Income: Other iteins of mcome are accounted as and when the. right to receive
such income arises and it is probable that the economic besefits will flow to the company and the
amount of income can be measured veliably.

3.7.1. Short Term Benefits

i) Shoit (erm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled. wholly within twelve months after the end of
the: period i whieh the employces render the related service are recognized in respect of
employees' services up to the end of the reporting period,

i) ES1 is provided on the basis of actual liabilities accrued and paid to authority.

3.7.2. Other Long Term Employee Benefits: The ltabilities for earned leaves that are not
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured. as the present value of the
expected future payments to be made. in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the reperting period using the projected unit eredit method. The benefits are discounted using
the government securities (G-8cc) at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of related obligation, Remeasurements as the result of experience
adjustment and changes in actoarial assumptions are recognized in statement of profit and loss.




3.7.3. Post Employment Benefits
The Compainy operates the following post employment schemes;

* Defined Cantribution Plan: Defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund, Employee
State Insurance ete. are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred and paid
to Authority.

* Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity): The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in
respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined, benefit obligation at-the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans' is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated anvually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustiments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The net interest cost is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefir obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. The benefiis are discousited using the government securities (G-Sec) at the
end of the reporting. period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in
other comprehensive inconte. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive incomie is
reflected imimediately in reétained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss.

3.8. GOVERNMENT GRANTS: Government grants are recognized at their fair value, where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. The grant relating to the acquisition/ construction of an item of property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to
profit ar loss on the same systematic basis as the respective assets are depreciated over their
expected life and are presented within other operating income.

3.9, FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

« Foreign currency (other than the functional currgncy) transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities deiominated in foreigh currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

» Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the




year in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which are mecluded in the cost of those
qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency botrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within finance
costs.

* There is no manetary item in foreign currency.

3.10. BORROWING COSTS

* Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs also includes foreign exchange difference to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

* Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset that necessari ly takes a substantial period of time to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

« Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective
loans using Effective [nterest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred,

3.11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

J.11.1. Financial Assets

* Recognition and Initial Measuremeut: All financial assets are initially recognized when the
company becomes 4 party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset is
initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
thiough profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. » Classification and Subsequent Measurement: For purposes of subsequent
measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

® Measured at Amortized Cost;

m Meagured at Fair Value through Othier Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI),

m Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

= Equity Instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).
Finaneial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.




m Measured at Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met:

w The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by botli collecting
contractual cash flows; and

w The contractual terms of the finangial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding.

= Non-current investment in unquoted equity instruments are measured in terms of
corresponding propoctionate net werth appearing in last available balance sheet of the
investee.

After jnitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cast is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premjum on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR, The EIR amortization is included in finance inceme in the statement of profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade reeejvables, cash and bank balances, loans and other finiancial assets of the
company.

m Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following
couditions are met;

* The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting coutractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and

* The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs. They dre subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or
losses and forcign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is vesognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment incomes.

* Measured al FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as FVTPL. In addition, the company may elect to desiguate a debt instrument, which
olherwise nieets ainortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments whicl are, held for trading are classified as at
BVTPRL,

* Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI: For equity instruiments, which has not been
classified as FVTPL as above, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election
on an instrament-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is




irrevocable. ln case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all
fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
veeyeling of the amounts from OCT to P&L, even on sale of investment.

* Derecoguition: The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the
cantractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

* lmpairment of Financigl Assets: The Company assésses at each date of balance sheet whether
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS — 109 requires expected
credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company recognizes impairment Joss
for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction using cxp,ectéd credit loss
model, which invelves use of a provision marrix constructed on the basis of historical eredit loss
experience. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal
to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amoeunt equal to the life time expected credit
losses if the credit risk on the fimancial asset has increased significantly since injtial recognition.

3.1L.2. Pinancial Liabilities

* Recognition and Initial Measurement: Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables or as
derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recoguized initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and botrowings. and payables, net of divectly attributable transaction costs.

* Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost
of FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it
is a derivative or it is designated as such on jnitial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amoitized cost using the
effective interost rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogunition is also recognized in profit or
loss.

* Financia} Guarantee Contracts: Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the helder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guaraiitee..
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amourtt of loss allowance deterniined
as per impairment requirement of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative
amortization.

* Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
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3.11.3. Offsetting financial instruments: Financial assets arid liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheget when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of defauit,
insolvency or bankruptey of the counterparty,

3.12. Earnings Per Shave: Basic Barnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects. of poteatial equity shares by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into,
equity shares.

3.13. Impairment of Non-Finanecial Assets: The Company assesses, at each reporting date,
wlhether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, An asset is treated as impaired
when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and
net selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the
balance useful lives of the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Casli Generating Usits -
CGU). An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which an asset is identified as impaired.The impairment loss recognized in earlier
accounting period is reversed if theie has been ap improvement in recoverable amount.

3.14. Provisions, Coutingent Liabilities and Coutingent Assets

3.14.1. Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisjons are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects curient market

assessments of the time value of mongy and the risks specific to the lability. The unwinding of

the discount is recognized as finance cost.

3.14.2. Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past

events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of

one or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the. Company or a present




obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not poessible that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligatious or
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. The Company discloses the
existence of contingent Habilitiés in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

3.14.3. Contingent Assets; Contj ngent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected

events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits. Cantingent Assets are
not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.15. Non-Current Assets held for sale: Noun-cufrent assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their earrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as roet only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject enly to terms that
are usual and custoimary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets (and
disposal groups) classified as hield for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

3.16. Operating Segment: Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to. the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and accordingly is:identified as the chief aperating decision maker.

The Company has identified one reportable segment "Real estate” based on the information
reviewed by the CODM.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IN
APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
ather factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Information about
Significant judgments and Key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant ¢ffects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
included in the following notes:

* Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be
recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income




against which the deferred tax assets can be ufilized. In addition, significant judgment is

required in assessing the impact of any legal or ecenomic limits.

* Classification of Leases;: The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets.
The classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an
assessment of several factors, mcluding, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset
at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated cerfainty of exercise of sueh
option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value of
minimum lease payments to fair value of lsased asset and extent of specialized nature of the
leased asset.

* Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO): Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of
actvarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions
coneerning future developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of ‘future
salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to
measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a
material impact on the resulting caleulations.

* Provisions and Contingencies: The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and
contingencies have been made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
37.'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The evaluation of the likelihood of
the contingent events is applied best judgment by management regarding the probability of
exposure 1o potential loss.

* Impairment of Finauncial Assets: The Compainy reviews its carrying value of investments
carried at amortized cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication of iimpairment. If
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

~ Allowances for Doubtful Debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through
appropriate estimations of irrecoverable amount, The identification of doubtful debts requires
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such diffevence will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful
debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed,

* Fair value measurement of financial Instruments: When the fair values of finangial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheef cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using vatuation techniques including the.
Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models ate taken frem observable markets
where possible, but where this not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.




